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The fund will file its complete schedule of portfolio holdings with the SEC for the first and third quarters of
each fiscal year on Form N-Q. The fund s Form N-Q will be available on the SEC s Web site at
http://www.sec.gov. In addition, the fund s Form N-Q may be reviewed and copied at the SEC s Public
Reference Room in Washington, D.C. Information on the operation of the Public Reference Room may be
obtained by calling 800.SEC.0330.

A description of the fund s proxy voting policies and procedures, as well as information regarding how the
fund voted proxies relating to portfolio securities during the most recent 12-month period ended June 30, is
available by visiting our Web site at Evergreenlnvestments.com or by visiting the SEC s Web site at
http://www.sec.gov. The fund s proxy voting policies and procedures are also available without charge,
upon request, by calling 800.343.2898.

This closed-end fund is no longer offered as an initial public offering and is only offered through
broker/dealers on the secondary market. A closed-end fund is not required to buy its shares back
from investors upon request.

Mutual Funds:

NOT FDIC INSURED ~ MAY LOSE VALUE NOT BANK GUARANTEED
Evergreen InvestmentsSM is a service mark of Evergreen Investment Management Company, LLC.
Copyright 2010, Evergreen Investment Management Company, LLC.

Evergreen Investment Management Company, LLC, is a subsidiary of Wells Fargo & Company and is an
affiliate of Wells Fargo & Company s broker/dealer subsidiaries. Evergreen open-end mutual funds are
distributed by Wells Fargo Funds Distributor, LLC, Member FINRA/SIPC, an affiliate of Wells Fargo &
Company.
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LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS

June 2010

W. Douglas Munn
President and Chief Executive Officer
Dear Valued Shareholder:

We are pleased to provide you with this semiannual report for Evergreen Global Dividend Opportunity Fund for the
six-month period that ended April 30, 2010 (the period ).

Leading up to the beginning of the period, a series of extraordinary financial and economic events affected the
financial markets in the United States and throughout the world. After a prolonged period of uncertainty and falling
share prices worldwide, stock markets staged a remarkable rally in 2009 that continued through the end of the year. In
January 2010, concerns about the sustainability of the economic recovery led to a partial correction, but the markets
quickly rebounded and ended the reporting period approximately where they began in 2010.

In the United States, employment data turned positive during the period, a welcome sign that the economic recovery
appeared to be moving toward self-sustainability. U.S. employers added 162,000 jobs in March 2010, the most in

three years. The unemployment rate edged down to 9.9% at the end of the period, after having peaked at 10.1% in
October 2009 its highest level in more than 25 years. Still, more than 8 million jobs were lost during the recession and
the number of long-term unemployed those out of work for 27 weeks or longer continued to increase, ending the period
at 6.7 million.

Investors were encouraged by continued economic growth in both developed and emerging markets and were placing
greater interest in underlying fundamentals, in sharp contrast to their wild pursuit of low-quality stocks just one year
ago. However, this sentiment was tempered by concerns over the growing sovereign debt problems in Europe, the
impact of Chinese policy tightening, and fears over U.S. bank regulation. A rally in the U.S. dollar and a decline in
commodity prices also had an impact.

Investors appeared caught between increasing signs of a cyclical upturn and the fear of lingering systematic risks in

the wake of the 2008 crisis, with the resulting market volatility. For instance, as the period drew to a close, investors
became increasingly nervous about the European Union s willingness and ability to bail out Greece, while Fitch
Ratings downgraded Portugal s sovereign debt and Spain moved onto investors worry radar. As a result, the euro sold
off almost 1.5% in a two-day time period, extending its four-month, 11% drop versus the dollar. During that time,
investors largely ignored concurrent data that showed U.S. durable goods orders climbing for three months in a row,
and business confidence in Germany reached its highest level



Edgar Filing: Evergreen Global Dividend Opportunity Fund - Form N-CSRS




Edgar Filing: Evergreen Global Dividend Opportunity Fund - Form N-CSRS
LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS continued

since June 2008. It was difficult to shake the feeling that the recovery in the West rested on a weak foundation.

In Asia, the situation was much different. Starting in the second half of 2009, Asia began to show signs of a sustained
recovery, well ahead of the rest of the world. Without the structural balance sheet issues faced by Western economies,
Asian credit growth picked up far earlier, particularly in China and more recently in India. In sharp contrast to Europe
and the United States, where a fear of debt-deflation spiral hung over the market near the end of the period, investors
in Asia were increasingly worried about rising inflation. Currently, the major risk we see is that Asian central banks
will begin to tighten credit and choke off growth in the region. Notably, in March of 2010, India became the first
major emerging market to raise interest rates in response to rapidly increasing inflation.

The tension between macro-economic forces, cyclical factors, and structural imbalances made for an interesting, if
challenging, investing environment. Our current view is that we must be wary of the ongoing, largely unaddressed
structural imbalances in the West, while cautiously embracing the strong cyclical upturn in Asia. It remains true that
the U.S. economy was propped up by government borrowing during most of the period, which merely offset massive
deleveraging at the household and corporate level. Renewed weakness in Western and Eastern Europe is a current
concern, and negative surprises presently remain possible in the coming months. Sovereign debt crises in Dubai and
Greece may not be the only ones investors will contend with in the next few years. Asia, on the other hand, currently
looks healthier. With strong balance sheets and growing economies, that area inspires optimism that good investment
opportunities may emerge.

During the period, managers of Evergreen Global Dividend Opportunity Fund pursued a strategy seeking a high level
of income as a primary objective, with a secondary objective of long-term capital growth. This closed-end fund sought
investments in the stocks of domestic and foreign companies with either above-average dividend yields or the
potential to increase their dividends. To add to the fund s potential income, the fund also wrote call options on U.S.
and foreign securities indexes.

We believe the changing conditions in the investment environment over the period have underscored the value of a
well-diversified, long-term investment strategy to help soften the effects of volatility in any one market or asset class.
As always, we encourage investors to maintain diversified investment portfolios in pursuit of their long-term
investment goals.




Edgar Filing: Evergreen Global Dividend Opportunity Fund - Form N-CSRS
LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS continued

Please visit us at EvergreenInvestments.com for more information about our funds and other investment products
available to you. Thank you for your continued support of Evergreen Investments.

Sincerely,

W. Douglas Munn

President and Chief Executive Officer
Evergreen Funds

Notice to Shareholders:

At meetings held on May 11 and June 9-10, 2010, the Board of Trustees of Evergreen Global Dividend Opportunity
Fund (the Fund ) unanimously approved a new advisory contract with Wells Fargo Funds Management, LL.C, a new
sub-advisory contract with Wells Capital Management Incorporated and a new sub-advisory contract with the Fund s
current sub-advisor, Crow Point Partners, LLC (the Agreements ). Shareholders are being asked to approve the
Agreements at a meeting to be held on July 9, 2010. Following approval of the Agreements, Tim Stevenson of Wells
Capital Management Incorporated is expected to continue to manage the options overlay strategy for the Fund. Tim
Stevenson currently provides such services to the Fund as a portfolio manager of Evergreen Investment Management
Company, LLC, the current advisor to the Fund. Tim O Brien of Crow Point Partners, LLC is expected to continue to
manage the Fund s equity securities. In addition, the Fund will be renamed the Wells Fargo Advantage Global
Dividend Opportunity Fund.

At the May 11 meeting, the Board also nominated seven persons for election to the Fund s Board as new Trustees, and
nominated two current Trustees for re-election to the Fund s Board. Shareholders are being asked to elect these
nominees at the July 9 meeting.

A Proxy Statement containing additional information about the Agreements and the nominees was provided to
shareholders of record as of May 18, 2010.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

(For a share outstanding throughout each period)

2

)%

Six Months Year Ended October 31,

Ended

April 30,

2010

(unaudited) 2009 2008 20071
Net asset value, beginning of period $10.38 $11.75 $19.83 $19.10
Income from investment operations
Net investment income 0.18 0.88 1.88 1.31
Net realized and unrealized gains or losses on
investments 0.37 (047 ) (7.96 ) 0.46
Total from investment operations 0.55 0.41 (6.08 ) 1.77
Distributions to shareholders from
Net investment income (0.56 ) (0.78 ) (2.00 ) (1.00
Tax basis return of capital 0 (1.00 ) 0 0
Total distributions to common shareholders (0.56 ) (1.78 ) (2.00 ) (1.00
Offering costs charged to capital 0 0 0 (0.04
Net asset value, end of period $10.37 $10.38 $11.75 $19.83
Market value, end of period $10.65 $9.89 $10.99 $17.29
Total return based on market value3 13.43 % 8.36 % (2719 )% (8.66
Ratios and supplemental data
Net assets, end of period (thousands) $507,688 $507,097 $574,157 $968,376
Ratios to average net assets
Expenses including waivers/reimbursements
but excluding expense reductions 1.12 %4 1.11 % 1.13 % 1.22
Expenses excluding waivers/reimbursements
and expense reductions 1.12 %* 1.11 % 1.13 % 1.22
Net investment income 3.42 %* 848 % 11.07 % 11.79
Portfolio turnover rate 26 % 160 % 218 % 102

%4

%4
%4
%

1 For the period from March 28, 2007 (commencement of operations), to October 31, 2007.

Initial public offering price of $20.00 per share less underwriting discount of $0.90 per share.
3 Total return is calculated assuming a purchase of common stock on the first day and a sale on the last

day of the period reported. Dividends and distributions, if any, are assumed for purposes of these

calculations to be reinvested at prices obtained under the Fund s Automatic Dividend Reinvestment
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Plan. Total return does not reflect brokerage commissions or sales charges.
4 Annualized
See Notes to Financial Statements
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SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS

April 30, 2010 (unaudited)

Country Shares Value
COMMON STOCKS 58.2%
CONSUMER DISCRETIONARY 5.0%
Media 5.0%
Mediaset SpA Italy 3,221,354 $25,583,452
ENERGY 6.3%
Oil, Gas & Consumable Fuels 6.3%
ENI SpA ltaly 1,000,000 22,417,421
EXCO Resources, Inc. United States 250,000 4,637,500
Kayne Anderson MLP Investment Co. United States 175,000 4,732,000
31,786,921
FINANCIALS 8.0%
Commercial Banks 2.4%
Westpac Banking Corp. Australia 500,000 12,426,371
Real Estate Investment Trusts (REITs) 5.6%
Chatham Lodging Trust * United States 250,000 4,962,500
Colony Financial, Inc. * United States 100,000 1,901,000
Crexus Investment Corp. * United States 60,000 792,600
Excel Trust, Inc. * United States 800,000 10,320,000
First Potomac Realty Trust United States 23,884 387,399
Invesco Mortgage Capital, Inc. United States 200,000 4,130,000
Starwood Property Trust, Inc. United States 300,000 5,685,000
28,178,499
INDUSTRIALS 6.0%
Air Freight & Logistics 2.2%
Deutsche Post AG Germany 706,274 11,436,869
Construction & Engineering 3.8%
Bouygues SA France 388,000 19,328,815
TELECOMMUNICATION SERVICES 8.9%
Diversified Telecommunication Services 8.7%
Cbeyond, Inc. * United States 98,800 1,519,544
France Telecom France 700,000 15,344,212
Qwest Communications International, Inc. United States 750,000 3,922,500
Shenandoah Telecommunications Co. + United States 368,600 6,546,336
Tele2 AB, Ser. B Sweden 999,952 16,997,057

11
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Wireless Telecommunication Services 0.2%
Vivo Participacoes SA, ADR

UTILITIES 24.0%

Electric Utilities 16.9%

E.ON AG

Enel SpA

FirstEnergy Corp.

See Notes to Financial Statements

Brazil

Germany
Italy
United States

27,735

300,000
5,000,000
50,000

44,329,649

734,145

11,078,190
26,076,644
1,893,500

12
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SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS continued

April 30, 2010 (unaudited)

Country Shares Value
COMMON STOCKS continued
UTILITIES continued
Electric Utilities continued
Fortum Oyj Finland 100,004 $2,591,013
FPL Group, Inc. United States 25,000 1,301,250
Hera SpA ltaly 5,500,000 11,690,337
Ilberdrola SA Spain 2,000,000 15,931,801
Maine & Maritimes Corp. United States 1,981 86,193
Red Electrica Corp. SA Spain 150,000 7,096,978
TERNA SpA Italy 2,000,000 8,109,429
85,855,335
Gas Utilities 0.9%
EQT Corp. United States 100,000 4,349,000
Independent Power Producers & Energy
Traders 0.3%
Constellation Energy Group, Inc. United States 50,000 1,767,500
Multi-Utilities 3.5%
RWE AG Germany 125,000 10,228,453
SCANA Corp. United States 50,000 1,973,500
Sempra Energy United States 20,000 983,600
Suez Environnement SA France 200,000 4,338,151
17,523,704
Water Utilities 2.4%
American Water Works Co. United States 100,000 2,178,000
Pennichuck Corp. + United States 50,000 1,163,500
United
Severn Trent plc Kingdom 500,000 8,860,731
12,202,231
Total Common Stocks (cost $284,081,604) 295,502,491

PREFERRED STOCKS 36.8%
ENERGY 0.6%
QOil, Gas & Consumable Fuels 0.6%

13
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Whitting Petroleum Corp., 6.25%

FINANCIALS 14.5%
Capital Markets 0.9%
Merrill Lynch Capital Trust |, 6.45%

Commercial Banks 8.9%

Barclays Bank plc, Ser. 2, 6.625%
BB&T Capital Trust VII, 8.10%

Fifth Third Capital Trust V, 7.25%
Fleet Capital Trust VIII, 7.20%
National City Capital Trust I, 6.625%
PNC Capital Trust E, 7.75%
Santander Bancorp, 10.50%

See Notes to Financial Statements

United States

United States

United
Kingdom
United States
United States
United States
United States
United States
United States

15,000

220,000

60,000
300,000
72,000
50,000
100,000
500,000
270,040

3,250,650

4,488,000

1,310,400
7,995,000
1,704,960
1,155,000
2,297,000
13,160,000
7,336,987

14
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SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS continued

April 30, 2010 (unaudited)

Country Si
PREFERRED
STOCKS continued
FINANCIALS continued
Commercial
Banks continued
Sovereign Capital Trust V, United
7.75% States 2(
SunTrust Capital IX, United
7.875% States 2(
Diversified Financial
Services 1.9%
ING Groep NV, 7.05% Netherlands 14
ING Groep NV, 7.375% Netherlands 21
JPMorgan Chase Capital United
XXIX, 6.70% States 1C
Insurance 2.2%
Aegon NV, 6.375% Netherlands 1E
Principal Financial Group, United
Ser. A, 5.56% States 7k
Protective Life Corp., United
8.00% States 1C
Real Estate Investment
Trusts (REITs) 0.6%
Vornado Realty LP, United
7.875% States 12
MATERIALS 0.6%
Chemicals 0.6%
E.l. DuPont de Nemours & United
Co., 4.50% States 3¢

UTILITIES 21.1%
Electric Utilities 18.1%

15
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Central lllinois Light United
Company, 4.50% States
Connecticut Light & Power United
Co., Ser. 1963, 4.50% States
Consolidated Edison, Inc., United
Ser. A, 5.00% States
Consolidated Edison, Inc., United
Ser. D, 4.65% States

Dayton Power & Light Co., ng-left:2px;padding-top:2px;padding-bottom:2px;padding-right:2px;">
Ser. A, 3.75% $

These categories may include investments issued or guaranteed by government sponsored enterprises such as

ey

by the Company are backed by residential mortgages.

Included in the carrying amount of the federal agency MBS category were CMOs totaling $16.4 million and $17.4
million at March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively.

At March 31, 2014, the equity portfolio consisted primarily of investments in a diversified group of mutual funds,
with a small portion of the portfolio (approximately 15%) invested in individual common stock of entities in the
financial services industry.

Net unrealized appreciation and depreciation on investments available for sale, net of applicable income taxes, are
reflected as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income.

The net unrealized gain or loss in the Company's fixed income portfolio fluctuates as market interest rates rise and
fall. Due to the fixed rate nature of this portfolio, as market rates fall the value of the portfolio rises, and as market
rates rise, the value of the portfolio declines. The unrealized gains or losses on fixed income investments will also
decline as the securities approach maturity, or if the issuer is credit impaired. Unrealized gains or losses will be
recognized in the statements of income if the securities are sold. However, if an unrealized loss on a fixed income
investment is deemed to be other than temporary, the credit loss portion is charged to earnings and the noncredit
portion is recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income.

11

215,369

Fannie Mae (FNMA), Freddie Mac (FHLMC), Ginnie Mae (GNMA), Federal Farm Credit Bank, or one of several
Federal Home Loan Banks. All agency MBS/Collateralized Mortgage Obligations ("CMOs") investments owned

16
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The net unrealized gain or loss on equity securities will fluctuate based on changes in the market value of the mutual
funds and individual securities held in the portfolio. Unrealized gains or losses will be recognized in the statements of
income if the securities are sold. However, if an unrealized loss on an equity security is deemed to be other than
temporary prior to a sale, the loss is charged to earnings.

Management regularly reviews the portfolio for securities with unrealized losses that are other-than-temporarily
impaired. During the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013, the Company did not record any fair value
impairment charges on its investments. As of March 31, 2014, there were a total of 64 investments (fixed income and
equity), with a fair market value of $62.7 million, in an unrealized loss position totaling $1.5 million. Management
attributes these unrealized losses to increases in current market yields compared to the yields at the time the
investments were purchased by the Company. Management does not consider these investments to be
other-than-temporarily impaired at March 31, 2014 because the decline in market value is not attributable to credit
quality for fixed income securities, or a fundamental deterioration in the equity fund or issuers, and because the
Company does not intend to, and it is more likely than not that it will not be required to, sell those investments prior to
a market price recovery or maturity.

In assessing MBS investments and Federal Agency obligations, the contractual cash flows of these investments are
guaranteed by an agency of the U.S. Government, and the agency that issued these securities is sponsored by the U.S.
Government. Accordingly, it is expected that the securities would not be settled at a price less than the par value of the
Company's investments. Management's assessment of other fixed income investments within the portfolio includes
reviews of market pricing, ongoing credit quality evaluations, assessment of the investment's materiality, and duration
of the unrealized loss position. In addition, the Company utilizes an outside registered investment adviser to manage
the corporate and municipal bond portfolios, within prescribed guidelines set by management. At March 31, 2014, the
Company's corporate and municipal bond portfolios did not contain any securities below investment grade, as reported
by major credit rating agencies. For equities and funds, management's assessment includes the severity of the declines,
whether it is unlikely that the security or fund will completely recover its unrealized loss within a reasonable time
period and if the equity security or fund exhibits fundamental deterioration.

The contractual maturity distribution at March 31, 2014 of total fixed income investments is as follows:

After One, But Within After Five, But within

Within One Year . After Ten Years
Five Years Ten Years

Amortized Yields Amortized Yields Amortized Yields Amortized Yields

Cost Cost Cost Cost
At amortized cost:
Federal agency obligations $10,020 0.82 % $34,387 0.82 % $2,968 197 % $— — %
MBS 18 143 % 2,996 246 % 6,976 3.00 % 68,192 213 %
Municipal securities 4,678 242 % 20,505 275 % 290911 435 % 8,286 588 %
Corporate bonds 102 1.25 % 4,098 1.60 % 1,770 288 % — — %

Total fixed income $14,818 133 % $61986 159 % $41,625 3.89 % $76478 254 %
securities

At fair value:

Total fixed income $14,888 $62,605 $42,438 $75,900
securities
Scheduled contractual maturities may not reflect the actual maturities of the investments. MBS/CMO securities are
shown at their final maturity; however, due to prepayments and amortization the actual MBS/CMO cash flows likely
will be faster than presented above. Similarly, included in the carrying value of fixed income investments above are

17
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callable securities, comprised of municipal securities, federal agency obligations and corporate bonds totaling $40.3
million, which can be redeemed by the issuer prior to the maturity presented above. Management considers these
early payment factors when evaluating the interest rate risk in the Company’s asset-liability management program.

From time to time, the Company may pledge securities as collateral against deposit account balances of municipal

deposit customers, and for borrowing capacity with the FHLB and FRB. The fair value of securities pledged as
collateral for these purposes was $195.8 million at March 31, 2014.

12

18
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See Note 8, “Fair Value Measurements” below for further information regarding the Company’s fair value measurements
for available-for-sale securities.

(3)Loans

The Company specializes in lending to business entities, non-profit organizations, professionals and individuals. The
Company’s primary lending focus is on the development of high quality commercial relationships achieved through
active business development efforts, long-term relationships with established commercial developers, strong
community involvement and focused marketing strategies. Loans made to businesses include commercial mortgage
loans, construction and land development loans, secured and unsecured commercial loans and lines of credit, and
standby letters of credit. The Company also originates equipment lease financing for businesses. Loans made to
individuals include conventional residential mortgage loans, home equity loans and lines, residential construction
loans on primary and secondary residences, and secured and unsecured personal loans and lines of credit. The
Company manages its loan portfolio to avoid concentration by industry and loan size to lessen its credit risk exposure.

See Note 4, "Allowance for Loan Losses," for Information on the Company's credit risk management, non-accrual,
impaired and troubled debt restructured loans and the allowance for loan losses.

Major classifications of loans at the periods indicated, are as follows:

. March 31, December 31,
(Dollars in thousands) 2014 2013
Real estate:
Commercial real estate $829,545 $820,299
Commercial construction 136,358 132,507
Residential mortgages 131,822 132,721
Total real estate 1,097,725 1,085,527
Commercial and industrial 370,787 357,056
Home equity 72,640 74,354
Consumer 7,926 8,043
Gross loans 1,549,078 1,525,580
Deferred loan origination fees, net (1,509 ) (1,524 )
Total loans 1,547,569 1,524,056
Allowance for loan losses (26,172 ) (26,967 )
Net loans $1,521,397 $1,497,089

Loan Categories

- Commercial loans:

Commercial real estate loans include loans secured by both owner-use and non-owner occupied real estate. These
loans are typically secured by a variety of commercial and industrial property types including one-to-four and

multi-family apartment buildings, office or mixed-use facilities, strip shopping centers, or other commercial property

and are generally guaranteed by the principals of the borrower. Commercial real estate loans generally have
repayment periods of approximately fifteen to twenty-five years. Variable interest rate loans have a variety of
adjustment terms and indices, and are generally fixed for an initial period before periodic rate adjustments begin.

19
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Commercial and industrial loans include seasonal revolving lines of credit, working capital loans, equipment
financing (including equipment leases), and term loans. Also included in commercial and industrial loans are loans
partially guaranteed by the U.S. Small Business Administration ("SBA"), loans under various programs issued in
conjunction with the Massachusetts Development Finance Agency and other agencies. Commercial and industrial
credits may be unsecured loans

13
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and lines to financially strong borrowers, secured in whole or in part by real estate unrelated to the principal purpose
of the loan or secured by inventories, equipment, or receivables, and are generally guaranteed by the principals of the
borrower. Variable rate loans and lines in this portfolio have interest rates that are periodically adjusted, with loans
generally having fixed initial periods. Commercial and industrial loans have average repayment periods of one to
seven years.

Commercial construction loans include the development of residential housing and condominium projects, the
development of commercial and industrial use property, and loans for the purchase and improvement of raw land.
These loans are secured in whole or in part by the underlying real estate collateral and are generally guaranteed by the
principals of the borrowers. Construction lenders work to cultivate long-term relationships with established
developers. The Company limits the amount of financing provided to any single developer for the construction of
properties built on a speculative basis. Funds for construction projects are disbursed as pre-specified stages of
construction are completed. Regular site inspections are performed, either by experienced construction lenders on
staff or by independent outside inspection companies, at each construction phase, prior to advancing additional funds.
Commercial construction loans generally are variable rate loans and lines with interest rates that are periodically
adjusted and generally have terms of one to three years.

From time to time, the Company participates with other banks in the financing of certain commercial projects. In
some cases, the Company may act as the lead lender, originating and servicing the loans, but participating out a
portion of the funding to other banks. In other cases, the Company may participate in loans originated by other
institutions. In each case, the participating bank funds a percentage of the loan commitment and takes on the related
risk. In each case in which the Company participates in a loan, the rights and obligations of each participating bank
are divided proportionately among the participating banks in an amount equal to their share of ownership and with
equal priority among all banks. The balances participated out to other institutions are not carried as assets on the
Company’s financial statements. Loans originated by other banks in which the Company is the participating institution
are carried in the loan portfolio at the Company’s pro rata share of ownership. The Company performs an independent
credit analysis of each commitment and a review of the participating institution prior to participation in the loan.

Loans originated by other banks in which the Company is the participating institution amounted to $47.9 million at
March 31, 2014 and $34.5 million at December 31, 2013.

Standby letters of credit are conditional commitments issued by the Company to guarantee the financial obligation or
performance by a customer to a third party. The credit risk involved in issuing letters of credit is essentially the same
as that involved in extending loan facilities to customers. If the letter of credit is drawn upon, a loan is created for the
customer, generally a commercial loan, with the same criteria associated with similar commercial loans.

- Residential loans:

Enterprise originates conventional mortgage loans on one-to-four family residential properties. These properties may
serve as the borrower’s primary residence, vacation homes, or investment properties. Loan to value limits vary,
generally from 80% for adjustable rate and multi-family, owner occupied properties, up to 97% for fixed rate loans on
single family, owner occupied properties, with mortgage insurance coverage required for loan-to-value ratios greater
than 80% based on program parameters. In addition, financing is provided for the construction of owner occupied
primary and secondary residences. Residential mortgage loans may have terms of up to 30 years at either fixed or
adjustable rates of interest. Fixed and adjustable rate residential mortgage loans are generally originated using
secondary market underwriting and documentation standards.

Depending on the current interest rate environment, management projections of future interest rates and the overall

asset-liability management program of the Company, management may elect to sell those fixed and adjustable rate
residential mortgage loans which are eligible for sale in the secondary market, or hold some or all of this residential
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loan production for the Company’s portfolio. Mortgage loans are generally not pooled for sale, but instead sold on an
individual basis. The Company may retain or sell the servicing when selling the loans. Loans sold are subject to
standard secondary market underwriting and eligibility representations and warranties over the life of the loan and are
subject to an early payment default period covering the first four payments for certain loan sales. Loans classified as
held for sale are carried as a separate line item on the balance sheet.

- Home equity loans and lines of credit:

Home equity term loans are originated for one-to-four family residential properties with maximum original loan to
value ratios generally up to 80% of the assessed or appraised value of the property securing the loan. Home equity
loan payments consist of monthly principal and interest based on amortization ranging from three to fifteen years.

The rates may also be fixed for three to fifteen years.

14
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The Company originates home equity revolving lines of credit for one-to-four family residential properties with
maximum original loan to value ratios generally up to 80% of the appraised value of the property securing the loan.
Home equity lines generally have interest rates that adjust monthly based on changes in the Prime Rate, although
minimum rates may be applicable. Some home equity line rates may be fixed for a period of time and then adjusted
monthly thereafter. The payment schedule for home equity lines requires interest only payments for the first ten years
of the lines. Generally at the end of ten years, the line may be frozen to future advances, and principal plus interest
payments are collected over a fifteen-year amortization schedule or, for eligible borrowers meeting certain
requirements, the line availability may be extended for an additional interest only period.

- Consumer loans:

Consumer loans primarily consist of secured or unsecured personal loans, loans under energy efficiency financing
programs in conjunction with Massachusetts public utilities, and overdraft protection lines on checking accounts
extended to individual customers. The aggregate amount of overdrawn deposit accounts are reclassified as loan
balances.

Loans serviced for others

At March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, the Company was servicing residential mortgage loans owned by
investors amounting to $20.3 million and $20.6 million, respectively. Additionally, the Company was servicing
commercial loans participated out to various other institutions amounting to $49.4 million and $52.1 million at
March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively. See the discussion above for further information regarding
commercial participations.

Loans serving as collateral

Loans designated as qualified collateral and pledged to the FHLB for borrowing capacity are summarized below:

. March 31, December 31,
(Dollars in thousands) 2014 2013
Commercial real estate $310,373 $320,908
Residential mortgages 97,501 97,626
Home equity 17,219 17,548
Total loans pledged to FHLB $425,093 $436,082

(4) Allowance for Loan Loss

While the Company manages its loan portfolio to avoid concentration by industry and loan size to lessen its credit risk
exposure, inherent in the lending process is the risk of loss due to customer non-payment, or “credit risk.” The
Company endeavors to minimize this risk through sound underwriting practices and the risk management function,
however, management recognizes that loan losses will occur and that the amount of these losses will fluctuate
depending on the risk characteristics of the loan portfolio and economic conditions.

The allowance for loan losses is an estimate of probable credit risk inherent in the loan portfolio as of the specified
balance sheet dates. The Company maintains the allowance at a level that it deems adequate to absorb all reasonably
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anticipated losses from specifically known and other credit risks associated with the portfolio. In making its
assessment on the adequacy of the allowance, management considers several quantitative and qualitative factors that
could have an effect on the credit quality of the portfolio including, individual assessment of larger and high risk
credits, delinquency trends and the level of non-performing loans, impaired and restructured loans, net charge-offs, the
growth and composition of the loan portfolio, expansion in geographic market area and the strength of the local and
national economy, among other factors.
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The level of adversely classified loans, and delinquent and non-performing assets is largely a function of economic
conditions, the overall banking environment, the Company's underwriting, and credit risk management standards. The
Company’s commercial lending focus may entail significant additional risks compared to long term financing on
existing, owner-occupied residential real estate. The Company endeavors to minimize this risk through sound
underwriting practices and the risk management function. The credit risk management function focuses on a wide
variety of factors, including, among others, current and expected economic conditions, the real estate market, the
financial condition of borrowers, the ability of borrowers to adapt to changing conditions or circumstances affecting
their business and the continuity of borrowers’ management teams. Early detection of credit issues is critical to
minimize credit losses. Accordingly, management regularly monitors these factors, among others, through ongoing
credit reviews by the Credit Department, an external loan review service, reviews by members of senior management
and the Loan Committee of the Board of Directors. This review includes the assessment of internal credit quality
indicators such as the risk classification of individual loans, adversely classified loans, past due and non-accrual loans,
impaired and restructured loans, and the level of foreclosure activity, as well as trends in the general levels of these
indicators. However, despite prudent loan underwriting and ongoing credit risk management, adverse changes within
the Company's market area or deterioration in the local, regional or national economic conditions could negatively
impact the portfolio's credit risk profile and the Company's asset quality in the future.

The loan portfolio continued to show improving statistics related to migration of adversely classified, non-accrual, and
impaired loans and the low level of Other Real Estate Owned ("OREQO") properties held during the quarter ended
March 31, 2014. However, management believes that the general credit profile of the portfolio and individual
commercial relationships will continue to be affected by lagging effects that the economic environment has had on the
regional and local commercial markets.

Adversely Classified Loans

The Company’s loan risk rating system classifies loans depending on risk of loss characteristics. The classifications
range from “substantially risk free” for the highest quality loans and loans that are secured by cash collateral, to the
more severe adverse classifications of “substandard,” “doubtful” and “loss” based on criteria established under banking
regulations.

Loans classified as substandard include those loans characterized by the distinct possibility that the Company will
sustain some loss if deficiencies are not corrected. These loans are inadequately protected by the sound net worth and
paying capacity of the borrower; repayment has become increasingly reliant on collateral liquidation or reliance on
guaranties; credit weaknesses are well-defined; borrower cash flow is insufficient to meet required debt service
specified in loan terms and to meet other obligations, such as trade debt and tax payments.

Loans classified as doubtful have all the weaknesses inherent in a substandard rated loan with the added characteristic
that the weaknesses make collection or full payment from liquidation, on the basis of currently existing facts,
conditions, and values, highly questionable and improbable. The probability of loss is extremely high, but because of
certain important and reasonably specific pending factors which may work to the advantage and strengthening of the
loan, its classification as an estimated loss is deferred until more exact status may be determined.

Loans classified as loss are generally considered uncollectible at present, although long term recovery of part or all of
loan proceeds may be possible. These “loss” loans would require a specific loss reserve or charge-off.

Adversely classified loans may be accruing or in non-accrual status and may be additionally designated as impaired or
restructured, or some combination thereof. Loans which are evaluated to be of weaker credit quality are reviewed on
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a more frequent basis by management.
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The following tables present the Company's credit risk profile for each class of loan in its portfolio by internally
assigned risk rating category at the periods indicated.
March 31, 2014

Adversely Classified Not Adversely
(Dollars in thousands) Substandard Doubtful Loss Classified Gross Loans
Commercial real estate $11,120 $1,236 $111 $817,078 $829,545
Commercial and industrial 8,014 50 168 362,555 370,787
Commercial construction 3,360 — — 132,998 136,358
Residential 1,613 — — 130,209 131,822
Home equity 587 — — 72,053 72,640
Consumer 41 — — 7,885 7,926
Total gross loans $24,735 $1,286 $279 $1,522,778 $1,549,078

December 31, 2013

Adversely Classified Not Adversely
(Dollars in thousands) Substandard Doubtful Loss Classified Gross Loans
Commercial real estate $13,545 $1,266 $— $805,488 $820,299
Commercial and industrial 7,908 51 236 348,861 357,056
Commercial construction 3,358 — — 129,149 132,507
Residential 1,012 — — 131,709 132,721
Home equity 500 — — 73,854 74,354
Consumer 40 — — 8,603 8,643
Total gross loans $26,363 $1,317 $236 $1,497,664 $1,525,580

The decrease in adversely classified loans since the prior period was due to a variety of activity including: credit rating

upgrades, primarily in commercial real estate; payoffs; the foreclosure sale of underlying collateral on a larger

commercial real estate relationship; and charge-offs, primarily commercial real estate and C&lI loans; partially offset

by additional credit downgrades, particularly in residential mortgage loans during the period.

Past Due and Non-Accrual Loans

Loans on which the accrual of interest has been discontinued are designated as non-accrual loans. Accrual of interest

on loans is generally discontinued when a loan becomes contractually past due, with respect to interest or principal,
90 days, or when reasonable doubt exists as to the full and timely collection of interest or principal. When a loan is

by

placed on non-accrual status, all interest previously accrued but not collected is reversed against current period interest

income. Interest accruals are resumed on such loans only when payments are brought current and have remained
current for a period of 180 days and when, in the judgment of management, the collectability of both principal and
interest is reasonably assured. Interest payments received on loans in a non-accrual status are generally applied to

principal on the books of the Company. Additionally, deposit accounts overdrawn for 90 or more days are included in

the consumer non-accrual numbers below.
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The following tables present age analysis of past due loans as of the dates indicated.
Balance at March 31, 2014

Loans 90 or
Loans Loans More Days Total Past Gross
(Dollars in thousands) 30-59 Days 60-89 Days Y Current Loans
Past Due (non- Due Loans Loans
Past Due Past Due
accrual)
Commercial real estate $3,212 $— $8,880 $12,092 $817,453 $829,545
Commercial and industrial 1,638 220 5,598 7,456 363,331 370,787
Commercial construction  — — 1,038 1,038 135,320 136,358
Residential 1,239 — 1,236 2,475 129,347 131,822
Home equity 39 95 273 407 72,233 72,640
Consumer 33 48 13 94 7,832 7,926
Total gross loans $6,161 $363 $17,038 $23,562 $1,525,516 $1,549,078
Balance at December 31, 2013
Loans 90 or
Loans Loans More Days Total Past
(Dollars in thousands) 30-59 Days 60-89 Days Y Current Loans Gross Loans
Past Due (non- Due Loans
Past Due Past Due
accrual)
Commercial real estate $1,142 $1,575 $10,561 $13,278 $807,021 $820,299
Commercial and industrial 680 908 5,743 7,331 349,725 357,056
Commercial construction 196 — 1,118 1,314 131,193 132,507
Residential 1,110 127 633 1,870 130,851 132,721
Home equity 211 10 281 502 73,852 74,354
Consumer 106 18 10 134 8,509 8,043
Total gross loans $3,445 $2,638 $ 18,346 $24,429 $1,501,151 $1,525,580

At March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, all loans 90 days or more past due were carried as non-accruing. Included
in the consumer non-accrual numbers in the table above were $4 thousand and $3 thousand of overdraft deposit
account balances 90 days or more past due at March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively. Total
non-performing loans amounted to $17.0 million and $18.3 million at March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013,
respectively. Non-accrual loans which were not adversely classified amounted to $552 thousand at March 31, 2014
and $577 thousand at December 31, 2013. These balances primarily represented the guaranteed portions of
non-performing U.S. Small Business Administration loans. The majority of the non-accrual loan balances were also
carried as impaired loans during the periods noted, and are discussed further below. The increase in loans 30-59 days
past due occurred primarily within the commercial real estate and commercial and industrial portfolios at March 31,
2014, with many loans having subsequent payments made in April.

The ratio of non-accrual loans to total loans amounted to 1.10% at March 31, 2014, 1.20% at December 31, 2013, and
1.41% at March 31, 2013.

At March 31, 2014, additional funding commitments for loans on non-accrual status totaled $1.0 million. The
Company’s obligation to fulfill the additional funding commitments on non-accrual loans is generally contingent on
the borrower’s compliance with the terms of the credit agreement. If the borrower is not in compliance, additional

funding commitments may or may not be made at the Company’s discretion.

Impaired Loans
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Impaired loans are individually significant loans for which management considers it probable that not all amounts due
(principal and interest) in accordance with the original contractual terms will be collected. The majority of impaired
loans are included within the non-accrual balances; however, not every loan in non-accrual status has been designated
as impaired. Impaired loans include troubled debt restructured ("TDR") loans. Impaired loans exclude large groups
of smaller-balance
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homogeneous loans, such as residential mortgage loans and consumer loans, which are collectively evaluated for
impairment and loans that are measured at fair value, unless the loan is amended in a TDR.

Management does not set any minimum delay of payments as a factor in reviewing for impaired classification.
Management considers the individual payment status, net worth and earnings potential of the borrower, and the value
and cash flow of the collateral as factors to determine if a loan will be paid in accordance with its contractual terms.
An impaired or TDR loan classification will be considered for upgrade based on the borrower's sustained performance
over time and their improving financial condition, the expectation of the borrower's ability to continue to service the
loan in accordance the original or modified terms and the collectability of the remaining balance, and in the case of
TDR loans, an interest rate at, or greater than, a market rate for a similar credit at the time of modification.

Impaired loans are individually evaluated for credit loss and a specific reserve is assigned for the amount of the
estimated credit loss. Refer to heading “Allowance for probable loan losses methodology” contained in Note 4
“Allowance For Loan Losses,” to the Company’s consolidated financial statements contained in the Company’s 2013
Annual Report on Form 10-K for further discussion of management’s methodology used to estimate specific reserves

for impaired loans.

Total impaired loans amounted to $27.9 million and $29.8 million, at March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013,
respectively. Total accruing impaired loans amounted to $11.5 million and $11.9 million at March 31, 2014 and
December 31, 2013, respectively, while non-accrual impaired loans amounted to $16.4 million and $17.9 million as of
March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively. The decrease was primarily due to the changes discussed
above under the heading "Adversely Classified Loans."

The following tables set forth the recorded investment in impaired loans and the related specific allowance allocated

as of the dated indicated.

Balance at March 31, 2014

(Dollars in thousands)

Commercial real estate
Commercial and industrial
Commercial construction
Residential

Home equity

Consumer

Total

Balance at December 31, 2013

(Dollars in thousands)

Commercial real estate
Commercial and industrial
Commercial construction
Residential

Unpaid
contractual

principal balance impaired loans

$ 14,902
12,119
3,396
1,102
110

23

$ 31,652

Unpaid
contractual

Total recorded
investment in

$12,966
10,518
3,277
1,045
108

23
$27,937

Total recorded
investment in

principal balance impaired loans

$17,420
12,220
3,464
673

$15,139
10,579
3,358
619

Recorded
investment
with no
allowance
$12,251
5,472
1,344

360

2

$19,429

Recorded
investment
with no
allowance
$12,105
4,902
1,426

365

Recorded
investment
with
allowance
$715
5,046
1,933

685

108

21

$8,508

Recorded
investment
with
allowance
$3,034
5,677
1,932

254

Related
allowance

$214
2,051
847
156

19

21
$3,308

Related
allowance

$507
2,901
830
107
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Home equity
Consumer
Total
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110
23
$33,910

108
23
$29,826

$18,798

108
23
$11,028

31
23
$4,399
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The following table presents the average recorded investment in impaired loans and the related interest recognized
during the three month periods indicated.
Three Months Ended March 31,  Three Months Ended March 31,

2014 2013
. Average recordedInterest income Average recordedInterest income
(Dollars in thousands) . . . .
investment recognized investment recognized
Commercial real estate $14,158 $50 $22,442 $98
Commercial and industrial 10,828 38 9,601 30
Commercial construction 3,305 26 2,898 24
Residential 759 — 811 1
Home equity 108 — 139 —
Consumer 24 — 14 —
Total $29,182 $114 $35,905 $153

At March 31, 2014, additional funding commitments for impaired loans totaled $1.1 million. The Company's
obligation to fulfill the additional funding commitments on impaired loans is generally contingent on the borrower's
compliance with the terms of the credit agreement. If the borrower is not in compliance, additional funding
commitments may or may not be made at the Company's discretion.

Troubled Debt Restructures

Loans are designated as a TDR when, as part of an agreement to modify the original contractual terms of the loan, the
Bank grants the borrower a concession on the terms, that would not otherwise be considered, as a result of financial
difficulties of the borrower. Typically, such concessions may consist of a reduction in interest rate to a below market
rate, taking into account the credit quality of the note, or a deferment or reduction of payments (principal or interest)
which materially alters the Bank’s position or significantly extends the note’s maturity date, such that the present value
of cash flows to be received is materially less than those contractually established at the loan’s origination. All loans
that are modified are reviewed by the Company to identify if a TDR has occurred. TDR loans are included in the
impaired loan category and, as such, these loans are individually evaluated and a specific reserve is assigned for the
amount of the estimated credit loss.

Total TDR loans, included in the impaired loan figures above, as of March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, were
$19.4 million and $20.9 million, respectively. TDR loans on accrual status amounted to $11.0 million and $11.4
million at March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively. TDR loans included in non-performing loans
amounted to $8.4 million and $9.5 million at March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively. The Company
continues to work with commercial relationships and enters into loan modifications to the extent deemed to be
necessary or appropriate while attempting to achieve the best mutual outcome given the current economic
environment.

At March 31, 2014, additional funding commitments for TDR loans totaled $62 thousand. The Company's obligation
to fulfill the additional funding commitments on TDR loans is generally contingent on the borrower's compliance with
the terms of the credit agreement. If the borrower is not in compliance, additional funding commitments may or may
not be made at the Company's discretion.
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Loan modification entered into during the three month period ended March 31, 2014 designated as troubled debt
restructurings are detailed below.

Three months ended March 31, 2014
Pre-modification Post-modification

(Dollars in thousands) Number qf outstanding outstanding
restructurings recorded recorded

investment investment

Commercial real estate 1 $ 453 $ 446

Commercial and industrial 2 70 68

Commercial construction — — —

Residential — — —

Home equity — — —

Consumer — — —

Total 3 $ 523 $ 514

At March 31, 2014, there were no specific reserves allocated to the TDRs entered into during the 2014 period as
management considered it likely the principal would ultimately be collected. Interest payments received on
non-accruing TDRs in the table above which were applied to principal and not recognized in interest income during
the three months ended March 31, 2014 amounted to $8 thousand.

There were no loans modified as troubled debt restructurings within the twelve month period previous to March 31,
2014 for which there was a subsequent payment default during the three months ended March 31, 2014.

There were no loan modification agreements entered into during the three months ended March 31, 2013 that
management deemed necessary to designate as TDR's.

Loans modified as troubled debt restructuring within the twelve month period previous to March 31, 2013 for which
there was a subsequent payment default during the period noted are detailed below.
Three months ended March 31, 2013

Post-
. Number of TDRs modification
(Dollars in thousands) that defaulted outstanding
recorded investment
Commercial real estate 1 $137
Commercial and industrial 2 8
Commercial construction 1 31
Residential 1 123
Home Equity — —
Consumer — —
Total 5 $299

There were no charge-offs associated with the TDRs noted in the table above during the three months ended
March 31, 2013. Included in the table above were two TDRs which defaulted, with total post modification
outstanding balance of $168 thousand, and were subsequently transferred to OREO during the March 31, 2013 period.

Other Real Estate Owned
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Real estate acquired by the Company through foreclosure proceedings or the acceptance of a deed in lieu of
foreclosure is classified as OREO. When property is acquired, it is generally recorded at the lesser of the loan’s
remaining principal balance,
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net of any unamortized deferred fees, or the estimated fair value of the property acquired, less estimated costs to sell.
Any loan balance in excess of the estimated realizable fair value on the date of transfer is charged to the allowance for
loan losses on that date. All costs incurred thereafter in maintaining the property, as well as subsequent declines in fair
value are charged to non-interest expense.

The carrying value of OREO at March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 was $114 thousand and consisted of the same
one property. There were no sales of OREO during the three months ended March 31, 2014. There were $101
thousand of gains realized on OREO sales during the three months ended March 31, 2013.

Allowance for probable loan losses methodology

On a quarterly basis, management prepares an estimate of the allowance necessary to cover estimated credit losses.
The Company maintains the allowance at a level that it deems adequate to absorb all reasonably anticipated losses
from specifically known and other credit risks associated with the portfolio. The Company uses a systematic
methodology to measure the amount of estimated loan loss exposure inherent in the portfolio for purposes of
establishing a sufficient allowance for loan losses. The methodology makes use of specific reserves, for loans
individually evaluated and deemed impaired and general reserves, for larger groups of homogeneous loans, which rely
on a combination of qualitative and quantitative factors that could have an impact on the credit quality of the portfolio.

There have been no material changes in the Company’s underwriting practices, credit risk management system, or to
the allowance assessment methodology used to estimate loan loss exposure as reported in the Company’s most recent
Annual Report on Form 10-K. Refer to heading “Allowance for probable loan losses methodology” contained in Note 4
“Allowance For Loan Losses,” to the Company’s consolidated financial statements contained in the Company’s 2013
Annual Report on Form 10-K for further discussion of management’s methodology used to estimate the loan loss
exposure inherent in the portfolio for purposes of establishing a sufficient allowance.

Allowance for loan loss activity

The allowance for loan losses is established through a provision for loan losses, a direct charge to earnings. Loan
losses are charged against the allowance when management believes that the collectability of the loan principal is
unlikely. Recoveries on loans previously charged-off are credited to the allowance.

The allowance for loan losses amounted to $26.2 million at March 31, 2014 compared to $27.0 million at

December 31, 2013. The allowance for loan losses to total loans ratio was 1.69% at March 31, 2014 and 1.77% at
December 31, 2013 compared to 1.78% at March 31, 2013. The decline in the overall allowance to total loan ratio at
March 31, 2014 primarily resulted from a reduction in specific reserves. Specific reserves declined due to current
charge-offs, the majority of which were previously allocated specific reserves on four commercial relationships for
which management deemed collectability of amounts due was unlikely based on current realizable collateral values.

Based on management’s judgment as to the existing credit risks inherent in the loan portfolio, as discussed above under
the heading "Credit Quality Indicators," management believes that the Company’s allowance for loan losses is
adequate to absorb probable losses from specifically known and other credit risks associated with the portfolio as of
March 31, 2014.
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Changes in the allowance for loan losses by segment for the three months ended March 31, 2014, are presented below:

(Dollars in thousands)

Beginning Balance at December 31,

2013

Provision
Recoveries

Less: Charge offs

Ending Balance at March 31, 2014

Ending allowance balance:
Allotted to loans individually
evaluated for impairment
Allotted to loans collectively
evaluated for impairment

Cmml Real Cmml and Cmml Resid. Home Consumer Total
Estate Industrial Constr ~ Mortgage Equity

$13,174  $8,365 $3,493  $1,057 $653 $225 $26,967
(101 ) 118 96 119 (19 ) (13 ) 200

— 26 — — — 12 38

203 812 — — — 18 1,033
$12,870  $7,697 $3,589  $1,176 $634 $206 $26,172
$214 $2,051 $847 $156 $19 $21 $3,308
$12,656  $5,646 $2,742  $1,020 $615 $185 $22,864

Changes in the allowance for loan losses by segment for the three months ended March 31, 2013, are presented below:

(Dollars in thousands)

Beginning Balance at December 31,

2012

Provision
Recoveries

Less: Charge offs

Ending Balance at March 31, 2013

Ending allowance balance:
Allotted to loans individually
evaluated for impairment
Allotted to loans collectively
evaluated for impairment

Cmml Real Cmml and Cmml

Resid.

Home

Consumer Total

Estate Industrial Constr Mortgage Equity

$11,793  $7,297  $3,456 $854 $728 $126 $24,254
566 221 30 (7 ) (33 ) 6 783

— 10 — 128 21 3 162

— 132 — — 44 7 183
$12,359  $7,396  $3,486 $975 $672 $128 $25,016
$1,065 $2,267  $717 $164 $36 $13 $4,262
$11,294  $5,129  $2,769 $811 $636 $115 $20,754

The balances of loans as of March 31, 2014 by segment and evaluation method are summarized as follows:
Loans individually Loans collectively

(Dollars in thousands)

Commercial real estate
Commercial and industrial
Commercial construction
Residential

Home equity

Consumer

Deferred Fees

Total loans

evaluated for

evaluated for

impairment impairment
$ 12,966 $ 816,579
10,518 360,269
3,277 133,081
1,045 130,777
108 72,532

23 7,903

— (1,509

$ 27,937 $ 1,519,632

Total Loans

$829,545
370,787
136,358
131,822
72,640
7,926

) (1,509 )
$1,547,569
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The balances of loans as of December 31, 2013 by segment and evaluation method are summarized as follows:
Loans individually Loans collectively

(Dollars in thousands) evaluated for evaluated for Total Loans
impairment impairment

Commercial real estate $ 15,139 $ 805,160 $820,299

Commercial and industrial 10,579 346,477 357,056

Commercial construction 3,358 129,149 132,507

Residential 619 132,102 132,721

Home equity 108 74,246 74,354

Consumer 23 8,620 8,043

Deferred Fees — (1,524 ) (1,524 )

Total loans $ 29,826 $ 1,494,230 $1,524,056

(5) Supplemental Retirement Plan and Other Postretirement Benefit Obligations
Supplemental Retirement Plan (SERPs)

The Company has salary continuation agreements with two of its active executive officers, and one former executive
officer who currently works on a part time basis. These agreements provide for predetermined fixed-cash

supplemental retirement benefits to be provided for a period of 20 years after each individual reaches a defined “benefit
age.” The Company has not recognized service cost in the current or prior year as each officer had previously attained
their individually defined benefit age and was fully vested under the plan.

This non-qualified plan represents a direct liability of the Company, and as such has no specific assets set aside to
settle the benefit obligation. The funded status is the aggregate amount accrued, or the “Accumulated Benefit
Obligation,” which is equal to the present value of the benefits to be provided to the employee or any beneficiary in
exchange for the employee’s service rendered to that date. Because the Company’s benefit obligations provide for
predetermined fixed-cash payments, the Company does not have any unrecognized costs to be included as a
component of accumulated other comprehensive income.

The total net periodic benefit cost, which was comprised of interest cost only, was $36 thousand for the three months
ended March 31, 2014 compared to $33 thousand for the three months ended March 31, 2013.

Benefits paid amounted to $69 thousand for both the three months ended March 31, 2014 and March 31, 2013. The
Company anticipates accruing an additional $107 thousand to the plan during the remainder of 2014.

Supplemental Life Insurance
For certain senior and executive officers on whom the Bank owns bank owned life insurance ("BOLI"), the Company
has provided supplemental life insurance, through split-dollar life insurance arrangements, which provides a death

benefit to the officer’s designated beneficiaries.

The Company has recognized a liability for future benefits associated with supplemental life insurance plan, which is
a non-qualified plan, that provides a benefit to an employee that extends to postretirement periods. This plan
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represents a direct liability of the Company, and as such has no specific assets set aside to settle the benefit
obligation. The funded status is the aggregate amount accrued, or the “Accumulated Postretirement Benefit Obligation,”
which is the present value of the post retirement benefits associated with this arrangement.

The total net periodic benefit cost, which was comprised of interest cost only, amounted to $18 thousand for both the
three months ended March 31, 2014 and March 31, 2013.
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(6) Stock-Based Compensation

The Company has individual stock incentive plans and has not changed the general terms and conditions of these
plans from those disclosed in the Company’s 2013 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

The Company’s stock-based compensation expense includes stock option awards and stock awards to officers, other
employees and directors, and stock compensation in lieu of cash fees to directors. Total stock-based compensation
expense was $481 thousand for the three months ended March 31, 2014, compared to $339 thousand for the three
months ended March 31, 2013.

Stock Option Awards

The Company recognized stock-based compensation expense related to stock option awards of $104 thousand for the
three months ended March 31, 2014 compared to $67 thousand for the three months ended March 31, 2013.

There were a total of 31,229 and 44,175 stock option awards granted to employees during the three months ended
March 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Options granted in 2014 and 2013 will vest 50% in year two and 50% in year
four, on the anniversary date of the awards. Vested options are only exercisable while the employee remains employed
with the Bank and for a limited time thereafter. The 2014 and the 2013 options expire ten years from the date of grant.

If a grantee’s employment or other service relationship, such as service as a director, is terminated for any reason, then
any stock options granted that have not vested as of the time of such termination generally must be forfeited, unless
the Compensation Committee or the Board of Directors, as the case may be, waives such forfeiture requirement.

The Company utilizes the Black-Scholes option valuation model in order to determine the per share grant date fair
value of option grants.

The table below provides a summary of the options granted, fair value, the fair value as a percentage of the market
value of the stock at the date of grant and the average assumptions used in the model for the options granted in 2014

and 2013.

Three Months Ended March 31,

2014 2013
Options granted 31,229 44,175
Average assumptions used in the model:
Expected volatility 47 % 48 %
Expected dividend yield 2.88 % 2.99 %
Expected life in years 7.0 7.0
Risk-free interest rate 2.19 % 1.29 %
Market price on date of grant $20.29 $16.43
Per share weighted average fair value $8.32 $6.56
Fair value as a percentage of market value at grant date 41 % 40 %

Refer to Note 11 “Stock-Based Compensation Plans” in the Company’s 2013 Annual Report on Form 10-K for a further
description of the assumptions used in the valuation model.

Stock Awards
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Stock-based compensation expense recognized in association with stock awards amounted to $308 thousand for the
three months ended March 31, 2014 compared to $217 thousand for the three months ended March 31, 2013.

During the three months ended March 31, 2014, the Company granted 58,844 shares of common stock in the form of
restricted stock awards. The awards were comprised of 19,167 shares awarded to employees generally vesting over
four years in equal portions beginning on or about the first anniversary date of the award, 33,017 shares awarded to
certain individuals that are performance based awards which vest upon the Company achieving certain predefined
performance objectives and 6,660 shares awarded to directors vesting over two years in equal portions beginning on
or about the first anniversary date of the award. The
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weighted average grant date fair value of the restricted stock awarded was $20.29 per share, the weighted average
market value of the common stock on the grant dates.

Additionally, in January 2014, the Company also granted 2,142 shares of fully vested stock to employees as
anniversary awards.

During the three months ended March 31, 2013, the Company granted 78,806 shares of common stock in the form of
restricted stock awards comprised of 24,925 shares awarded to employees in equal portions beginning on or about the
first anniversary date of the award, generally vesting over four years, 47,735 shares awarded to certain individuals that
are performance based awards which vest upon the Company achieving certain predefined performance objectives and
6,146 shares awarded to directors vesting over two years, in equal portions beginning on or about the first anniversary
date of the award. The weighted average grant date fair value of the restricted stock awarded was $16.43 per share,
which reflects the weighted average market value of the common stock on the grant dates.

The restricted stock awards allow for the receipt of dividends, and the voting of all shares, whether or not vested,
throughout the vesting periods at the same proportional level as common shares outstanding.

If a grantee’s employment or other service relationship, such as service as a director, is terminated for any reason, then
any shares of restricted stock granted that have not vested as of the time of such termination generally must be
forfeited, unless the Compensation Committee or the Board of Directors, as the case may be, waives such forfeiture
requirement.

Stock in Lieu of Directors’ Fees

In addition to restricted stock awards discussed above, the members of the Company’s Board of Directors may opt to
receive newly issued shares of the Company’s common stock in lieu of cash compensation for attendance at Board and
Board Committee meetings. Stock-based compensation expense related to directors’ election to receive shares of
common stock in lieu of cash fees for attendance at Board and Board Committees meetings amounted to $69 thousand
for the three months ended March 31, 2014 compared to $55 thousand for the three months ended March 31, 2013. In
January 2014, directors were issued 11,136 shares of common stock in lieu of cash fees related to the 2013 annual
directors’ stock-based compensation expense of $194 thousand and a market value price of $17.43 per share, the
market value of the common stock on the opt-in measurement date, January 2, 2013.

(7)Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing net income by the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding (including participating securities) during the year. The Company's only participating securities are
unvested restricted stock awards that contain non-forfeitable rights to dividends. Diluted earnings per share reflects
the effect on weighted average shares outstanding of the number of additional shares outstanding if dilutive stock
options were converted into common stock using the treasury stock method.

The table below presents the increase in average shares outstanding, using the treasury stock method, for the diluted
earnings per share calculation for the periods indicated:
Three Months Ended March 31,

2014 2013
Basic weighted average common shares outstanding 10,030,111 9,715,174
Dilutive shares 89,155 75,298
Diluted weighted average common shares outstanding 10,119,266 9,790,472
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For the three months ended March 31, 2014, there were an additional 5,158 average stock options outstanding, which
were excluded from the year-to-date calculation of diluted earnings per share due to the exercise price of these options
exceeding the average market price of the Company’s common stock for the period. These options, which were not
dilutive at that date, may potentially dilute earnings per share in the future.
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(8)Fair Value Measurements

The FASB defines the fair value of an asset or liability to be the price which a seller would receive in an orderly
transaction between market participants (an exit price) and also establishes a fair value hierarchy segregating fair
value measurements using three levels of inputs: (Level 1) quoted market prices in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities; (Level 2) significant other observable inputs, including quoted prices for similar items in active markets,
quoted prices for identical or similar items in markets that are not active, inputs such as interest rates and yield curves,
volatilities, prepayment speeds, credit risks and default rates which provide a reasonable basis for fair value
determination or inputs derived principally from observed market data; and (Level 3) significant unobservable inputs
for situations in which there is little, if any, market activity for the asset or liability. Unobservable inputs must reflect
reasonable assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability, which are developed on the
basis of the best information available under the circumstances.

The following tables summarize significant assets and liabilities carried at fair value and placement in the fair value
hierarchy at the dates specified:

lz\/gilzh 31, Fair Value Measurements using:

(Dollars in thousands) Fair Value (level 1) (level 2) (level 3)
Assets measured on a recurring basis:
Fixed income securities $195,831 $— $195,831 $—
Equity securities 13,323 13,323 — —
FHLB Stock 4,324 — — 4,324
Assets measured on a non-recurring basis:
Impaired loans (collateral dependent) 5,144 — — 5,144
Other real estate owned 114 — — 114

12)06 1C ; mber 31, Fair Value Measurements using:
(Dollars in thousands) Fair Value (level 1) (level 2) (level 3)
Assets measured on a recurring basis:
Fixed income securities $202,201 $— $202,201 $—
Equity securities 13,168 13,168 — —
FHLB Stock 4,324 — — 4,324
Assets measured on a non-recurring basis:
Impaired loans (collateral dependent) 6,542 — — 6,542
Other real estate owned 114 — — 114

The Company did not have cause to transfer any assets between the fair value measurement levels during the three
months ended March 31, 2014 or the year ended December 31, 2013. There were no liabilities measured at fair value
on a recurring or non-recurring basis as of March 31, 2014 or December 31, 2013.

All of the Company's fixed income investments and equity securities that are considered “available for sale” are carried
at fair value. The fixed income category above includes federal agency obligations, federal agency MBS, municipal
securities and corporate bonds as held at those dates. The Company utilizes third-party pricing vendors to provide
valuations on its fixed income securities. Fair values provided by the vendors were generally determined based upon
pricing matrices utilizing observable market data inputs for similar or benchmark securities in active markets and/or
based on a matrix pricing methodology which employs The Bond Market Association’s standard calculations for cash
flow and price/yield analysis, live benchmark bond pricing and terms/condition data available from major pricing
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sources. Therefore, management regards the inputs and methods used by third party pricing vendors to be “Level 2
inputs and methods” as defined in the “fair value hierarchy.” The Company periodically obtains a second price from an
impartial third party on fixed income securities to assess the reasonableness of prices provided by the primary
independent pricing vendor.
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The Company’s equity portfolio fair value is measured based on quoted market prices for the shares; therefore, these
securities are categorized as Level 1 within the fair value hierarchy.

Net unrealized appreciation and depreciation on investments available for sale, net of applicable income taxes, are
reflected as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income.

The Bank is required to purchase FHLB stock at par value in association with advances from the FHLB; this stock is
classified as a restricted investment and carried at cost which management believes approximates fair value; therefore,
these securities are categorized as Level 3 measures. See Note 1, "Summary of Significant Accounting Policies," Item
(d) for further information regarding the Company's fair value assessment of FHLB capital stock.

Impaired loan balances in the table above represent those collateral dependent impaired commercial loans where
management has estimated the credit loss by comparing the loan’s carrying value against the expected realizable fair
value of the collateral (appraised value or internal analysis less estimated cost to sell, adjusted as necessary for

changes in relevant valuation factors subsequent to the measurement date). Certain inputs used in these assessments,
and possible subsequent adjustments, are not always observable, and therefore, collateral dependent impaired loans

are categorized as Level 3 within the fair value hierarchy. A specific allowance is assigned to the collateral dependent
impaired loan for the amount of management’s estimated credit loss. The specific allowances assigned to the collateral
dependent impaired loans at March 31, 2014 amounted to $2.3 million compared to $3.2 million at December 31,
2013.

Real estate acquired by the Company through foreclosure proceedings or the acceptance of a deed in lieu of
foreclosure is classified as OREO. When property is acquired, it is generally recorded at the lesser of the loan’s
remaining principal balance, net of unamortized deferred fees, or the estimated fair value of the property acquired, less
estimated costs to sell. The estimated fair value is based on market appraisals and the Company’s internal analysis.
Certain inputs used in appraisals or the Company's internal analysis, are not always observable, and therefore, OREO
may be categorized as Level 3 within the fair value hierarchy. There were no sales of OREO during the three months
ended March 31, 2014. There were $101 thousand of gains realized on OREO sales during the three months ended
March 31, 2013.

The following table presents additional quantitative information about assets measured at fair value on a recurring and
non-recurring basis for which the Company utilized Level 3 inputs (significant unobservable inputs for situations in
which there is little, if any, market activity for the asset or liability) to determine fair value as of March 31, 2014.

Unobservable
(Dollars in thousands) Fair Value Valuation Technique Unobservable Input Input Value
or Range
Assets measured on a recurring basis:
FHLB Stock $4,324 FHLB Stated Par Value N/A N/A
Assets measured on a non-recurring
basis:
Impaired loans (collateral dependent)  $5,144 Appraisal of collateral ﬁx)ppralsal adjustments 5% - 50%
Other real estate owned $114 Appraisal of collateral Appraisal adjustments 0% - 30%

@
Appraisals may be adjusted by management for qualitative factors such as economic conditions and estimated
liquidation expenses.

ey

Other Guarantees and Commitments
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Standby letters of credit are conditional commitments issued by the Company to guarantee the financial obligation or
performance by a customer to a third party. The fair value of these commitments was estimated to be the fees charged
to enter into similar agreements, and accordingly these fair value measures are deemed to be FASB Level 2
measurements. In accordance with the FASB, the estimated fair values of these commitments are carried on the
balance sheet as a liability and amortized to income over the life of the letters of credit, which are typically one year.
The estimated fair value of these commitments carried on the balance sheet at March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013
were deemed immaterial.

Interest rate lock commitments related to the origination of mortgage loans that will be sold are considered derivative
instruments. The commitments to sell loans are also considered derivative instruments. The Company generally does
not pool mortgage loans for sale, but instead, sells the loans on an individual basis. To reduce the net interest rate
exposure arising from
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its loan sale activity, the Company enters into the commitment to sell these loans at essentially the same time that the
interest rate lock commitment is quoted on the origination of the loan. The Company estimates the fair value of these
derivatives based on current secondary mortgage market prices. These commitments represent the Company’s only
derivative instruments and are accounted for in accordance with FASB guidance. The fair values of the Company’s
derivative instruments are deemed to be FASB Level 2 measurements. At March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013,
the estimated fair value of the Company’s derivative instruments was considered to be immaterial.

Estimated Fair Values of Assets and Liabilities

In addition to disclosures regarding the measurement of assets and liabilities carried at fair value on the balance sheet,
the Company is also required to disclose fair value information about financial instruments for which it is practicable
to estimate that value, whether or not recognized on the balance sheet. In cases where quoted fair values are not
available, fair values are based upon estimates using various valuation techniques. Those techniques are significantly
affected by the assumptions used, including the discount rate and estimates of future cash flows. The following
methods and assumptions were used by the Company in estimating fair values of its financial instruments:

Loans held for sale: Loans held for sale are recorded at the lower of aggregate amortized cost or market value. The fair
value is based on comparable market prices for loans with similar rates and terms.

Loans: The fair value of loans was determined using discounted cash flow analysis, using interest rates currently being
offered by the Company. The incremental credit risk for adversely classified loans was considered in the
determination of the fair value of the loans. This method of estimating fair value does not incorporate the exit price
concept of fair value.

Commitments: The fair values of the unused portion of lines of credit and letters of credit were estimated to be the
fees currently charged to enter into similar agreements. Commitments to originate non-mortgage loans were
short-term and were at current market rates and estimated to have no significant change in fair value.

Financial liabilities: The fair values of certificates of deposit and borrowings were estimated using discounted cash
flow analysis using rates offered by the Bank, or advance rates offered by the FHLB on March 31, 2014 and
December 31, 2013 for similar instruments. The fair value of junior subordinated debentures was estimated using
discounted cash flow analysis using a market rate of interest at March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013.

Limitations: The estimates of fair value of financial instruments were based on information available at March 31,
2014 and December 31, 2013 and are not indicative of the fair market value of those instruments as of the date of this
report. These estimates do not reflect any premium or discount that could result from offering for sale at one time the
Company’s entire holdings of a particular financial instrument. The fair value of the Company's time deposit liabilities
do not take into consideration the value of the Company's long-term relationships with depositors, which may have
significant value.

Because no active market exists for a portion of the Company’s financial instruments, fair value estimates were based
on judgments regarding future expected loss experience, current economic conditions, risk characteristics of various
financial instruments, and other factors. These estimates are subjective in nature and involve uncertainties and matters
of significant judgment and therefore cannot be determined with precision. Changes in assumptions could
significantly affect the estimates.

Fair value estimates were based on existing on- and off-balance sheet financial instruments without an attempt to

estimate the value of anticipated future business and the value of assets and liabilities that are not considered financial
instruments, including premises and equipment and foreclosed real estate.
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In addition, the tax ramifications related to the realization of the unrealized appreciation and depreciation can have a
significant effect on fair value estimates and have not been considered in any of the estimates. Accordingly, the
aggregate fair value amounts presented do not represent the underlying value of the Company.
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The carrying values, estimated fair values and placement in the fair value hierarchy of the Company’s financial
instruments(!) for which fair value is only disclosed but not recognized on the balance sheet at the dates indicated are
summarized as follows:

March 31, 2014 Fair value measurement

(Dollars in thousands) Carrying Fair Value Level ! Level 2 Level 3
Amount inputs Inputs Inputs

Financial assets:

Loans held for sale $1,385 $1,385 $— $1,385 —

Loans, net 1,521,397 1,540,240 — — 1,540,240

Financial liabilities:

Certificates of deposit (including brokered) 283,059 281,552 — 281,552 —

Borrowed funds 7,484 7,485 — 7,485 —

Junior subordinated debentures 10,825 11,801 — — 11,801
December 31, 2013 Fair value measurement

(Dollars in thousands) Carrying Fair Value Level ! Level 2 Level 3
Amount inputs Inputs Inputs

Financial assets:

Loans held for sale $1,255 $1,255 $— $1,255 —

Loans, net 1,497,089 1,516,809 — — 1,516,809

Financial liabilities:

Certificates of deposit (including brokered) 251,650 250,045 — 250,045 —

Borrowed funds 36,534 36,535 — 36,535 —

Junior subordinated debentures 10,825 11,358 — — 11,358

Excluded from this table are certain financial instruments with carrying values that approximated their fair value at
the dates indicated, as they were short-term in nature or payable on demand. These include cash and cash

(1)equivalents, accrued interest receivable, non-term deposit accounts, and accrued interest payable. The respective
carrying values of these instruments would all be considered to be classified within Level 1 of their fair value
hierarchy.
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Item 2 - Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Management’s discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with the Company’s (also referred to herein as
“Enterprise,” “us,” “we” or “our”) consolidated financial statements and notes thereto contained in this report and the
Company’s 2013 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Accounting Policies/Critical Accounting Estimates

As discussed in the Company’s 2013 Annual Report on Form 10-K, the three most significant areas in which
management applies critical assumptions and estimates that are particularly susceptible to change relate to the
determination of the allowance for loan losses, impairment review of investment securities and the impairment review
of goodwill. The Company has not changed its significant accounting and reporting policies from those disclosed in
its 2013 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

This report contains certain ‘“forward-looking statements” within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation
Reform Act of 1995, including statements concerning plans, objectives, future events or performance and assumptions
and other statements that are other than statements of historical fact. Forward-looking statements may be identified by
reference to a future period or periods or by use of forward-looking terminology such as “anticipates,” “believes,” “expects,”
“intends,” “may,” “plans,” “pursue,” “views” and similar terms or expressions. Various statements contained in Item 2 -
“Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and Item 3 - “Quantitative
and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk,” including, but not limited to, statements related to management's
views on the banking environment and the economy, competition and market expansion opportunities, the interest rate
environment, credit risk and the level of future non-performing assets and charge-offs, potential asset and deposit
growth, future non-interest expenditures and non-interest income growth, and borrowing capacity are forward-looking
statements. The Company wishes to caution readers that such forward-looking statements reflect numerous
assumptions and involve a number of risks and uncertainties that may adversely affect the Company's future results.
The forward-looking statements in this report are based on information available to the Company as of the date of this
report and the Company undertakes no obligation to publicly update or otherwise revise any forward-looking
statement, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise. The following important factors, among
others, could cause the Company's results for subsequent periods to differ materially from those expressed in any
forward-looking statement made herein: (i) changes in interest rates could negatively impact net interest income; (ii)
changes in the business cycle and downturns in the local, regional or national economies, including deterioration in
the local real estate market, could negatively impact credit and/or asset quality and result in credit losses and increases
in the Company's allowance for loan losses; (iii) changes in consumer spending could negatively impact the
Company's credit quality and financial results; (iv) increasing competition from larger regional and out-of-state
banking organizations as well as non-bank providers of various financial services could adversely affect the
Company's competitive position within its market area and reduce demand for the Company's products and services;
(v) deterioration of securities markets could adversely affect the value or credit quality of the Company's assets and
the availability of funding sources necessary to meet the Company's liquidity needs; (vi) changes in technology,
including the increased risk of internet hacking and identity theft could adversely impact the Company's operations
and increase technology-related expenditures; (vii) increases in employee compensation and benefit expenses could
adversely affect the Company's financial results; (viii) changes in laws and regulations that apply to the Company's
business and operations, including without limitation, the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection
Act (the "Dodd-Frank Act"), the Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act (the "JOBS Act"), the Basel III rules adopted by
the federal banking regulators and the additional regulations that will be forthcoming as a result thereof, could
adversely affect the Company's business environment, operations and financial results; (ix) changes in accounting
standards, policies and practices, as may be adopted or established by the regulatory agencies, the Financial
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Accounting Standards Board (the “FASB”) or the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board could negatively
impact the Company's financial results; (x) our ability to enter new markets successfully and capitalize on growth
opportunities; (xi) future regulatory compliance costs, including any increase caused by new regulations imposed by
the Consumer Finance Protection Bureau; and (xii) some or all of the risks and uncertainties described in Item 1A of
the Company’s 2013 Annual Report on Form 10-K could be realized, which could have a material adverse effect on
the Company’s business, financial condition and results of operation. Therefore, the Company cautions readers not to
place undue reliance on any such forward-looking information and statements.
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Overview

Executive Summary

Net income for the three months ended March 31, 2014 amounted to $3.5 million, an increase of $73 thousand, or 2%,
compared to the same three-month period in 2013. Diluted earnings per share were $0.35 for both the three-month
periods ended March 31, 2014 and March 31, 2013.

Loans have increased 10% since March 31, 2013 and deposits, excluding brokered deposits, have increased 8% over
the same period. Our total assets exceeded $1.85 billion and total assets under management exceeded $2.6 billion at
the end of the current quarter.

The Company's growth contributed to increases in net interest income and non-interest expenses in first quarter of
2014 compared to the same period in the prior year. Net income for the three months ended March 31, 2014 was also
impacted by a lower loan loss provision in the current year-to-date period, partially offset by a decrease in non-interest
income primarily as a result of lower gains on sales of loans in the first quarter of 2014.

In 2014, the Company continues to focus on organic growth while we remain committed to strategic investments in
our branch network, technology, progressive product capabilities, our communities, and our family of Enterprise
employees. The opening of our two most recent branches in Lawrence, MA and Nashua, NH reflect our commitment
to take advantage of market opportunities. Our branch openings, which have occurred at an accelerated pace in the last
two years, are strategic investments aimed at building momentum for our future.

Composition of Earnings

The Company’s earnings are largely dependent on its net interest income, which is the difference between interest
earned on loans and investments and the cost of funding (primarily deposits and borrowings). Net interest income
expressed as a percentage of average interest earning assets is referred to as net interest margin. The Company reports
net interest margin on a tax equivalent basis ("margin").

Net interest income for the three months ended March 31, 2014 amounted to $16.9 million, an increase of $1.1
million, or 7%, compared to the same period in 2013. This increase in net interest income was primarily due to
revenue generated from loan growth, mainly in commercial real estate loans, partially offset by a decrease in margin.
Average loan balances (including loans held for sale) increased $152.8 million for the three months ended March 31,
2014, compared to the same period in 2013. Net interest margin was 4.02% for the three months ended March 31,
2014 compared to 4.16% for the three months ended March 31, 2013, and was relatively consistent with the quarterly
margins at December 31, 2013 of 4.04% and September 30, 2013 of 4.02%.

For the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013, the provision for loan losses amounted to $200 thousand and
$783 thousand, respectively. In determining the provision to the allowance for loan losses, management takes into
consideration the level of loan growth and an estimate of credit risk, which includes such items as adversely classified
and non-performing loans, the estimated specific reserves needed for impaired loans, the level of net charge-offs, and
the estimated impact of current economic conditions on credit quality. The level of loan growth for the three months
ended March 31, 2014 was $23.5 million, compared to $44.5 million during the same period in 2013. Total
non-performing assets as a percentage of total assets were 0.92% at March 31, 2014, compared to 1.18% at March 31,
2013. For the three months ended March 31, 2014, the Company recorded net charge-offs of $995 thousand compared
to $21 thousand for the three months ended March 31, 2013. The majority of the current charge-offs were previously
allocated specific reserves on four commercial relationships for which management deemed collectability of amounts
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due was unlikely based on current realizable collateral values. This reduction in specific reserves contributed to the
decline in the overall allowance to total loan ratio at March 31, 2014. Management continues to closely monitor the
non-performing assets, charge-offs and necessary allowance levels, including specific reserves. The allowance for
loan losses to total loans ratio was 1.69% at March 31, 2014, 1.77% at December 31, 2013 and 1.78% at March 31,
2013.

For further information regarding loan quality statistics and the allowance for loan losses, see the sections below
under the heading "Financial Condition" titled "Asset Quality" and "Allowance for Loan Losses."

Non-interest income for the three months ended March 31, 2014 amounted to $3.5 million, representing a decrease of

$160 thousand, or 4%, compared to the same three month period in 2013. The decrease in non-interest income was
primarily due to
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a decrease in gains on loan sales income due to a lower volume of mortgage origination activity in the first quarter of
2014 as a result of an increase in rates, as well as a decrease in "other income," due primarily to a lower level of gains
on OREO sales in the current year-to-date period. These decreases were partially offset by increases in investment
advisory income and deposit and interchange fees.

For the three months ended March 31, 2014, non-interest expense amounted to $14.8 million, an increase of $1.4
million, or 10%, over the same period in the prior year. Increased expenses related to salaries and benefits, occupancy
and technology over the same period in the prior year were primarily due to the Company's strategic growth
initiatives, including branch network and market expansion.

Sources and Uses of Funds

The Company’s primary sources of funds are deposits, Federal Home Loan Bank ("FHLB") borrowings, current
earnings and proceeds from the sales, maturities and pay-downs on loans and investment securities. The Company
may also, from time to time, utilize brokered deposits and overnight borrowings from correspondent banks to provide
additional funding sources and to aid in the company's asset liability and interest rate risk positioning. These funds are
used to originate loans, purchase investment securities, conduct operations, expand the branch network, and pay
dividends to shareholders.

The investment portfolio is primarily used to provide liquidity, manage the Company’s asset-liability position and to
invest excess funds. Total investments, one of the key components of earning assets, amounted to $209.2 million at
March 31, 2014, and comprised 11% and 12%of total assets at March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively.
Investments decreased $6.2 million, or 3%, since December 31, 2013.

Enterprise's main asset strategy is to grow loans, the largest component of earning assets, with a focus on high quality
commercial loans. Total loans increased $23.5 million, or 2%, since December 31, 2013 and amounted to $1.55
billion, or 83% of total assets, at March 31, 2014. Total commercial loans amounted to $1.34 billion, or 86% of gross
loans, which was consistent with the composition at December 31, 2013.

Management’s preferred strategy for funding asset growth is to grow low cost deposits (comprised of demand deposit
accounts, interest and business checking accounts and traditional savings accounts). Asset growth in excess of low
cost deposits is typically funded through higher cost deposits (comprised of money market accounts, commercial
tiered rate or "investment savings" accounts and term certificates of deposit) and wholesale funding (brokered deposits
and borrowed funds).

At March 31, 2014, deposits, excluding brokered deposits, amounted to $1.59 billion, an increase of $9.0 million, or
1%, from December 31, 2013 balances. Non-brokered deposit growth since December 31, 2013 was noted primarily
within the money market category, partially offset by a decrease in checking account balances.

Wholesale funding amounted to $92.6 million at March 31, 2014, compared to $88.1 million at December 31, 2013,
an increase of $4.5 million, or 5%. Brokered CDs outstanding at March 31, 2014 had a weighted average life of
approximately 3.8 years.

Wholesale funding included FHLB advances of $7.5 million and $36.5 million at March 31, 2014 and December 31,
2013, respectively, and brokered deposits of $85.1 million and $51.6 million at March 31, 2014 and December 31,
2013, respectively.

Opportunities and Risks
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The Company’s ability to achieve its long-term strategic growth and market share objectives will depend in part upon
the Company’s continued success in differentiating itself in the market place and its ability to strengthen its
competitive position.
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Enterprise faces robust competition to retain and attract customers within existing and neighboring geographic
markets. National and larger regional banks have a local presence in the Company’s market area. These larger banks
have certain competitive advantages, including greater financial resources and the ability to make larger loans to a
single borrower. Numerous local savings banks, commercial banks, cooperative banks and credit unions also compete
in the Company’s market area. The expanded commercial lending capabilities of credit unions and the shift to
commercial lending by traditional savings banks means that both of these types of traditionally consumer-orientated
institutions now compete for the Company’s targeted commercial customers. In addition, the non-taxable status of
credit unions allows them certain advantages as compared to taxable institutions such as Enterprise. Competition for
loans, deposits and cash management services, investment advisory assets, and insurance business also comes from
other businesses that provide financial services, including consumer finance companies, mortgage brokers and
lenders, private lenders, insurance companies, securities brokerage firms, institutional mutual funds, registered
investment advisors, internet based banks and non-bank payment channels. Consolidation within the industry,
customer disenfranchisement with larger national/international banks, banks exiting certain business lines, and the
cost of compliance with new government regulations are all expected to have an impact on the regional competitive
market. Management actively seeks to strengthen its competitive position by capitalizing on the market opportunities
and the continued pursuit of strategic growth within existing and neighboring geographic markets. Advances in, and
the increased use of technology, such as internet and mobile banking, electronic transaction processing and
information security, are expected to have a significant impact on the future competitive landscape confronting
financial institutions.

Management believes the Company's community service culture, business model, full range of diversified financial
products and services, and state-of-the-art delivery channels position the Company to be a leading provider of banking
and investment advisory and wealth management services in its growing market area. The Company has differentiated
itself by building a solid reputation within the local market for delivering consistently superior customer service and
taking an active role in support of the communities we serve. The Company's banking professionals have developed
in-depth knowledge of our markets and are committed to upholding the Company’s core values, including significant
community involvement, which has led to a strong referral network with local business and community leaders.

The Company seeks to increase deposit share through continuous reviews of deposit product offerings, ancillary
services and delivery channels, targeted to both business' and consumers' needs. These products and services are
delivered by experienced local banking professionals who possess strong technical skills, and function as trusted
advisors to clients. In addition, Enterprise carefully plans deposit expansion through new branch development. Within
the last two years, the Company opened four branch offices. These openings occurred at an accelerated pace, which
reflects our commitment to take advantage of market opportunities. The Company believes that each of these offices
is strategically located to complement existing locations while expanding the Company's geographic market footprint.
This branch expansion is aimed at achieving not only deposit market share growth, but also contributes to loan
originations and generates referrals for investment advisory and management services, insurance services and
residential mortgages and cash management products.

Management believes that Enterprise is also well equipped to capitalize on market potential to grow both the
commercial and residential loan portfolios through strong business development efforts, while utilizing a disciplined
and consistent lending approach and credit review practices, which has served to provide quality asset growth over
varying economic cycles during the Company’s history. The Company has a skilled lending sales force with a broad
breadth of business knowledge and depth of lending experience to draw upon, supported by a highly qualified and
experienced commercial credit review function.

Management continues to undertake significant strategic initiatives, including investments in employee training and

development, marketing and public relations, technology and electronic delivery methods, and ongoing improvements
and renovations of existing branches and operations facilities. Industry consolidation also provides management the
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opportunity to recruit experienced banking professionals with market knowledge who complement the Enterprise sales
and service culture. While management recognizes that such investments increase expenses in the short-term,
Enterprise believes that such initiatives are a necessary investment in the long-term growth and earnings of the
Company and are reflective of the opportunities in the current marketplace for community banks such as Enterprise.
However, lower than expected return on these investments, such as slower than anticipated loan and deposit growth in
new branches and/or lower than expected fee or other income generated from new technology or initiatives, could
decrease anticipated revenues and net income on such investments in the future.

Any prolonged deterioration of the general economic environment could weaken the local New England economy and
have adverse repercussions on local industries, leading to increased unemployment and mortgage foreclosures, further
deterioration of local commercial real estate values, or other unforeseen consequences, which could have a severe
negative impact on the Company’s financial condition, capital position, liquidity, and performance. In addition, the
loan portfolio consists primarily of commercial real estate, commercial and industrial, and commercial construction
loans. These types of loans are typically larger and are generally viewed as having more risk of default than owner
occupied residential real estate loans or consumer loans.
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Any significant deterioration in the credit quality of the commercial loan portfolio or underlying collateral values due

to a worsening of the economic environment could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial

condition and results of operations. The risk of loss due to customers’ non-payment of loans or lines of credit is called
“credit risk.” Credit risk management is reviewed below in this Item 2 under the headings “Credit Risk," "Asset Quality”
and “Allowance for Loan Losses.”

The value of the investment portfolio as a whole, or individual securities held, including restricted FHLB capital
stock, could be negatively impacted by any sustained volatility in the financial markets or in credit markets, or a
fundamental deterioration of credit quality of the individual security, fund or issuer, which could possibly result in the
recognition of other-than-temporary-impairment (“OTTI”) charges in the future.

In addition, a sustained low interest rate environment could negatively impact the Company's net interest income and
results of operation. The re-pricing frequency of interest earning assets and liabilities are not identical, and, therefore,
subject the Company to the risk of adverse changes in interest rates. This is often referred to as “interest rate risk”” and is
reviewed in more detail under the heading Item 3, “Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk,”
below.

Liquidity management is the coordination of activities so that cash needs are anticipated and met, readily and
efficiently. Liquidity management is reviewed further below in this Item 2 under the heading “Liquidity.”

Federal banking agencies require the Company and the Bank to meet minimum capital requirements. For information
regarding the current capital requirements applicable to the Company and the Bank and their respective capital levels
at March 31, 2014, and the recently adopted changes to the regulatory capital framework, see the section entitled
“Capital Resources” contained in this Item 2 below. At March 31, 2014, both the Company and the Bank were
categorized as “well capitalized;” however, future unanticipated charges against capital, or changes in regulatory
requirements such as Basel III discussed below, could impact those regulatory capital designations.

In addition, any further changes in government regulation or oversight, including the implementation by the federal
regulatory agencies of the various requirements contained in the Dodd-Frank Act and rules under Basel III, could
affect the Company in substantial and unpredictable ways, including, but not limited to, subjecting the Company to
additional operating, governance and compliance costs, or potential loss of revenue due to the impact of an enhanced
regulatory structure on the banking industry, and require all U.S. banking organizations, including community banks,
such as Enterprise Bank, to hold higher amounts of capital, especially common equity, against their risk-weighted
assets. Although several significant aspects of the Dodd-Frank Act and the Basel III rule expressly apply only to
larger, “systemically significant” institutions, they may have the potential to influence the Company's business
decisions, while other parts of the legislation apply either directly, or potentially indirectly, to activities of community
banks, such as Enterprise.

Many aspects of the Dodd-Frank Act are subject to rulemaking by various regulatory agencies, some of which have
not yet taken effect, making it difficult at this time to anticipate the overall financial impact of this expansive
legislation on the Company, its customers or the financial industry generally. Likewise, any new consumer financial
protection laws enacted by the Consumer Financial Protection Bureau would apply to all banks and thrifts, and may
increase the Company's compliance and operational costs in the future.

Compliance risk includes the threat of fines, civil money penalties, lawsuits and restricted growth opportunities
resulting from violations and/or non-conformance with laws, rules, regulations, prescribed practices, internal policies
and procedures, or ethical standards. The Company maintains a Compliance Management Program (CMP) designed
to meet regulatory and legislative requirements. The CMP provides for tracking and implementing regulatory
changes, monitoring the effectiveness of policies and procedures, conducting compliance risk assessments, and
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educating employees in matters relating to regulatory compliance. The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors
oversees the effectiveness of the CMP.

Operational risk includes the threat of loss from inadequate or failed internal processes, people, systems or external
events, due to, among other things: fraud or error; the inability to deliver products or services; failure to maintain a
competitive position; lack of information or physical security; inadequate procedures or controls followed by
third-party service providers; or violations of ethical standards. Controls to manage operational risk include, but are
not limited to, technology administration, information security, vendor management and business continuity planning.

The Company's technology administration includes policies and guidelines for the design, procurement, installation,
management and acceptable use of hardware, software and network devices. The Company has implemented layered
security approaches for all delivery channels and technology project standards that are designed to provide risk based
oversight,
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coordinate and communicate ideas, and to prioritize and manage project implementation in a manner consistent with
corporate objectives.

Management utilizes a combination of third party information security assessments, key technologies and ongoing
internal evaluations to provide a level of protection of non-public personal information and to continually monitor and
attempt to safeguard information on its operating systems and those of third party service providers. The Company
also utilizes firewall technology and a combination of software and third-party monitoring to detect intrusion, guard
against unauthorized access, and continuously identify and prevent computer viruses on the Company’s information
systems.

The Company has a risk-based, third-party vendor management program designed to provide a mechanism to enable
management to determine what risk, if any, a particular vendor exposes the Company to, to rate those risks, and to
mitigate that risk by properly performing initial and ongoing due diligence when selecting or maintaining relationships
with significant third-party providers.

The Company’s Disaster Recovery and Business Continuity Program consists of the information and procedures
required to enable a rapid recovery from an occurrence that would disable the Company’s operations for an extended
period, due to circumstances such as: loss of personnel; loss of information and/or loss of access to information under
various scenarios; and loss of access to, or the physical destruction or damage of, facilities, infrastructure or systems.
The plan, which is reviewed annually, establishes responsibility for assessing a disruption of business, contains
alternative strategies for the continuance of critical business functions during an emergency situation, assigns
responsibility for restoring services, and sets priorities by which critical services will be restored. A bank-owned and
maintained secondary data center location provides the Company auxiliary network processing capabilities and
flexibility.

Any system of controls or contingency plan, however well designed and operated, is based in part on certain
assumptions and can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurances that the objectives of the controls and
procedures will be met.

This Opportunities and Risks discussion should be read in conjunction with Item 1A “Risk Factors,” and the section
titled "Opportunities and Risk" contained in Item 7 "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditions
and Results of Operations" included in the Company’s 2013 Annual Report on Form 10-K, which address numerous

other factors and details that could adversely affect the Company’s reputation, its future results of operations and
financial condition.

Financial Condition

Total assets increased $15.3 million, or 1%, since December 31, 2013, to $1.87 billion at March 31, 2014. The
balance sheet composition and changes since December 31, 2013 are discussed below.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents is comprised of cash on hand and cash items due from banks, interest-earning deposits
(deposit accounts, money market, and money market mutual funds accounts) and fed funds sold. Cash and cash

equivalents amounted to 3% of total assets at both March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively.

Investments
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At March 31, 2014, the carrying value of the investment portfolio amounted to $209.2 million, a decrease of $6.2
million, or 3%, compared to December 31, 2013.
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The following table summarizes investments at the dates indicated:

March 31, December 31, March 31,

2014 2013 2013
(Dollars in thousands) Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent
Federal agency obligations() $47.476 22.7 % $55,543 25.8 % $65,578 35.7 %

F&‘gghﬁ‘geney mortgage backed securities ., 4o 370 g 79650 370 % 46840 255 %

Municipal securities 64,926 31.0 % 61954  28.8 % 56,559 30.8 %
Corporate bonds 5,969 2.9 % 5,054 2.3 % 2,952 1.6 %
Total fixed income securities 195,831 93.6 % 202,201 93.9 % 171,929 93.6 %
Equity investments 13,323 6.4 % 13,168 6.1 % 11,780 6.4 %

Total available for sale investments at fair

value $209,154 100.0 % $215,369 100.0 % $183,709 1000 %

These categories may include investments issued or guaranteed by government sponsored enterprises such as

( )Fannie Mae (FNMA), Freddie Mac (FHLMC), Ginnie Mae (GNMA), Federal Farm Credit Bank, or one of several
Federal Home Loan Banks. All agency MBS/CMO investments owned by the Company are backed by residential
mortgages.

Included in the federal agency MBS categories above were CMOs totaling $16.4 million, $17.4 million, and $22.0
million at March 31, 2014, December 31, 2013, and March 31, 2013, respectively.

During the three months ended March 31, 2014, the total principal pay downs, calls and maturities amounted to $11.9
million. During the period, the Company purchased $6.6 million in securities. In addition, management sold
investment securities with an amortized cost of approximately $1.6 million realizing net gains on sales of $488
thousand, primarily on equity investments in the first quarter of 2014 in order to capitalize on market opportunities.

Net unrealized gains on the investment portfolio amounted to $4.2 million at March 31, 2014 compared to $3.2
million at December 31, 2013 and $6.2 million at March 31, 2013. Unrealized gains or losses will only be recognized
in the statements of income if the investments are sold. However, should an investment be deemed “other than
temporarily impaired,” the Company is required to write-down the fair value of the investment. See Note 2,
“Investment Securities,” and Note 8, “Fair Value Measurements,” to the Company’s unaudited consolidated financial
statements contained in Item 1 above for further information regarding the Company’s unrealized gains and losses on
debt and equity securities, including information about investments in an unrealized loss position for which an
other-than-temporary impairment has or has not been recognized, and investments pledged as collateral, as well as the
Company’s fair value measurements for available-for-sale securities.

Federal Home Loan Bank Stock

The Company is required to purchase stock of the FHLB in association with advances from the FHLB; this stock is
classified as a restricted investment and carried at cost, which management believes approximates fair value. The
carrying amount of FHLB stock was $4.3 million for both the periods ended March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013,
and was $4.0 million at March 31, 2013. See Note 1, "Summary of Significant Accounting Policies," Item (d),
“Restricted Investments,” to the Company’s unaudited consolidated financial statements contained in Item 1 above for
further information regarding the Company’s investment in FHLB stock.

Loans
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Total loans represented 83% of total assets as of March 31, 2014, compared to 82% at December 31, 2013. Total
loans increased $23.5 million, or 2%, compared to December 31, 2013, and $143.4 million, or 10%, since March 31,
2013. The mix of loans within the portfolio remained relatively unchanged with commercial loans amounting to
approximately 86% of gross loans, reflecting a continued focus on commercial loan growth.
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The following table sets forth the loan balances by certain loan categories at the dates indicated and the percentage of
each category to gross loans.

March 31, 2014 December 31, 2013 March 31, 2013
(Dollars in thousands) Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent
Commercial real estate $829,545 53.6 % $820,299 53.8 % $745,155 53.0 %
Commercial and industrial 370,787 23.9 % 357,056 23.4 % 331,221 23.6 %
Commercial construction 136,358 8.8 % 132,507 8.6 % 126,393 9.0 %
Total commercial loans 1,336,690 86.3 % 1,309,862 85.8 % 1,202,769 85.6 %
Residential mortgages 131,822 8.5 % 132,721 8.7 % 123,367 8.8 %
Home equity loans and lines 72,640 4.7 % 74,354 4.9 % 74,406 5.3 %
Consumer 7,926 0.5 % 8,643 0.6 % 5,035 0.3 %
Total retail loans 212,388 13.7 % 215,718 14.2 % 202,808 14.4 %
Gross loans 1,549,078 100.0 % 1,525,580 100.0 % 1,405,577 100.0 %
Deferred fees, net (1,509 ) (1,524 ) (1,417 )
Total loans 1,547,569 1,524,056 1,404,160
Allowance for loan losses (26,172 ) (26,967 ) (25,016 )
Net loans $1,521,397 $1,497,089 $1,379,144

Commercial real estate loans increased $9.2 million, or 1%, as of March 31, 2014, compared to December 31, 2013,
and increased 11% compared to March 31, 2013. Commercial real estate loans are typically secured by one-to-four
and multi-family apartment buildings, office or mixed-use facilities, strip shopping centers or other commercial or
industrial property.

Commercial and industrial loans increased by $13.7 million, or 4%, since December 31, 2013, and increased 12% as
compared to March 31, 2013. These loans include seasonal revolving lines of credit, working capital loans,
equipment financing (including equipment leases), and term loans. Also included in commercial and industrial loans
are loans under various SBA programs.

Commercial construction loans increased by $3.9 million, or 3%, since December 31, 2013, and also increased 8% as
compared to March 31, 2013. Commercial construction loans include the development of residential housing and
condominium projects, the development of commercial and industrial use property and loans for the purchase and
improvement of raw land.

Retail loans decreased by $3.3 million, or 2%, since December 31, 2013 and increased by $9.6 million, or 5%, since
March 31, 2013. The increase since the prior year was primarily within the residential mortgage portfolio.

At March 31, 2014, commercial loan balances participated out to various banks amounted to $49.4 million, compared
to $52.1 million at December 31, 2013, and $53.4 million at March 31, 2013. These balances participated out to other
institutions are not carried as assets on the Company’s financial statements. Loans originated by other banks in which
the Company is the participating institution are carried at the pro-rata share of ownership and amounted to $47.9
million, $34.5 million and $28.0 million at March 31, 2014, December 31, 2013, and March 31, 2013, respectively. In
each case, the participating bank funds a percentage of the loan commitment and takes on the related risk. In each case
in which the Company participates in a loan, the rights and obligations of each participating bank are divided
proportionately among the participating banks in an amount equal to their share of ownership and with equal priority
among all banks.
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See Note 3, “Loans,” to the Company’s unaudited consolidated financial statements contained in Item 1 for information
on loans serviced for others and loans pledged as collateral.
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The Company manages its loan portfolio to avoid concentration by industry and loan size to lessen its credit risk
exposure. However, inherent in the lending process is the risk of loss due to customer non-payment, or “credit risk.”
The Company’s commercial lending focus may entail significant additional risks compared to long term financing on
existing, owner-occupied residential real estate. While the Company endeavors to minimize this risk through sound
underwriting practices and the risk management function, management recognizes that loan losses will occur and that
the amount of these losses will fluctuate depending on the risk characteristics of the loan portfolio and economic
conditions.

The credit risk management function focuses on a wide variety of factors, including, among others, current and
expected economic conditions, the real estate market, the financial condition of borrowers, the ability of borrowers to
adapt to changing conditions or circumstances affecting their business and the continuity of borrowers’ management
teams. Early detection of credit issues is critical to minimize credit losses. Accordingly, management regularly
monitors these factors, among others, through ongoing credit reviews by the Credit Department, an external loan
review service, reviews by members of senior management and the Loan Committee of the Board of Directors. This
review includes the assessment of internal credit quality indicators such as the risk classification of loans, individual
review of adversely classified loans, past due and non-accrual loans, impaired and restructured loans, and the level of
foreclosure activity, as well as trends in the general levels of these indicators.

The Company’s loan risk rating system classifies loans depending on risk of loss characteristics. The classifications
range from “substantially risk free” for the highest quality loans and loans that are secured by cash collateral, to the
more severe adverse classifications of “substandard,” “doubtful” and “loss” based on criteria established under banking
regulations. Loans classified as "substandard" include those characterized by the distinct possibility that the Company
will sustain some loss if the deficiencies are not corrected. Loans classified as "doubtful" have all the weaknesses
inherent in a substandard rated loan with the added characteristic that the weaknesses make collection or full payment
from liquidation, on the basis of currently existing facts, conditions, and values, highly questionable and improbable.
Loans classified as "loss" are generally considered uncollectible at present, although long term recovery of part or all
of loan proceeds may be possible. These “loss” loans would require a specific loss reserve or charge-off. Adversely
classified loans may be accruing or in non-accrual status and may be additionally designated as restructured and/or
impaired, or some combination thereof. Loans which are evaluated to be of weaker credit quality are reviewed on a
more frequent basis by management.

Loans on which the accrual of interest has been discontinued are designated as non-performing or non-accrual loans.
Accrual of interest on loans is generally discontinued when a loan becomes contractually past due, with respect to
interest or principal, by 90 days, or when reasonable doubt exists as to the full and timely collection of interest or
principal. When a loan is placed on non-accrual status, all interest previously accrued but not collected is reversed
against current period interest income. Interest accruals are resumed on such loans only when payments are brought
current and have remained current for a period of 180 days or when, in the judgment of management, the collectability
of both principal and interest is reasonably assured. Interest payments received on loans in a non-accrual status are
generally applied to principal on the books of the Company.

Impaired loans are individually significant loans for which management considers it probable that not all amounts due
(principal and interest) in accordance with original contractual terms will be collected. The majority of impaired loans
are included within the non-accrual balances; however, not every loan in non-accrual status has been designated as
impaired. Impaired loans include loans that have been modified in a troubled debt restructure ("TDR"). Impaired loans
exclude large groups of smaller-balance homogeneous loans, such as residential mortgage loans and consumer loans,
which are collectively evaluated for impairment and loans that are measured at fair value, unless the loan is amended
in a TDR.
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Management does not set any minimum delay of payments as a factor in reviewing for impaired classification.
Management considers the payment status, net worth and earnings potential of the borrower, and the value and cash
flow of the collateral as factors to determine if a loan will be paid in accordance with its contractual terms.

Impaired loans are individually evaluated for credit loss and a specific reserve is assigned for the amount of the
estimated credit loss. When a loan is deemed to be impaired, management estimates the credit loss by comparing the
loan’s carrying value against either 1) the present value of the expected future cash flows discounted at the loan’s
effective interest rate; 2) the loan’s observable market price; or 3) the expected realizable fair value of the collateral, in
the case of collateral dependent loans. A specific allowance is assigned to the impaired loan for the amount of
estimated credit loss. Impaired loans are charged off, in whole or in part, when management believes that the recorded
investment in the loan is uncollectible.

Loans are designated as a TDR when, as part of an agreement to modify the original contractual terms of the loan, the
Bank grants a concession on the terms, that would not otherwise be considered, as a result of financial difficulties of

the borrower.
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Typically, such concessions consist of a reduction in interest rate to a below market rate, taking into account the credit
quality of the note, or a deferment or reduction of payments (principal or interest), which materially alters the Bank’s
position or significantly extends the note’s maturity date, such that the present value of cash flows to be received is
materially less than those contractually established at the loan’s origination. All loans that are modified are reviewed
by the Company to identify if a TDR has occurred. TDR loans are included in the impaired loan category and as such,
these loans are individually reviewed and evaluated, and a specific reserve is assigned for the amount of the estimated
credit loss.

A TDR or impaired loan classification will be considered for upgrade based on the borrower's sustained performance
over time and their improving financial condition, the expectation of the borrower's ability to continue to service the
loan in accordance the original or modified terms and the collectability of the remaining balance, and in the case of
TDR loans, an interest rate at or greater than a market rate for a similar credit at the time of modification.

Real estate acquired by the Company through foreclosure proceedings or the acceptance of a deed in lieu of
foreclosure is classified as Other Real Estate Owned ("OREQO"). When property is acquired, it is generally recorded at
the lesser of the loan’s remaining principal balance, net of any unamortized deferred fees, or the estimated fair value of
the property acquired, less estimated costs to sell. Any loan balance in excess of the estimated realizable fair value on
the date of transfer is charged to the allowance for loan losses on that date. All costs incurred thereafter in maintaining
the property, as well as subsequent declines in fair value are charged to non-interest expense.

Non-performing assets are comprised of non-accrual loans, deposit account overdrafts that are more than 90 days past
due and OREO. The designation of a loan or other asset as non-performing does not necessarily indicate that loan
principal and interest will ultimately be uncollectible. However, management recognizes the greater risk
characteristics of these assets and therefore considers the potential risk of loss on assets included in this category in
evaluating the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses. Despite prudent loan underwriting, adverse changes within
the Company’s market area, or deterioration in local, regional or national economic conditions, could negatively
impact the Company’s level of non-performing assets in the future.

Asset Quality

At March 31, 2014, the Company had adversely classified loans (loans carrying “substandard,” “doubtful” or “loss”
classifications) amounting to $26.3 million, compared to $27.9 million at December 31, 2013. The decrease in
adversely classified loans since the prior period was due to a variety of activity including: credit rating upgrades,
primarily in commercial real estate; payoffs; the foreclosure sale of underlying collateral on a larger commercial real
estate relationship; and charge-offs, primarily commercial real estate and C&I loans; partially offset by additional
credit downgrades, particularly in residential mortgage loans during the period.

Adversely classified loans which were performing but possessed potential weaknesses and, as a result, could
ultimately become non-performing loans amounted to $9.8 million at March 31, 2014 and $10.2 million at

December 31, 2013. The remaining balances of adversely classified loans were non-accrual loans, amounting to $16.5
million and $17.8 million at March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively. Non-accrual loans which were not
adversely classified amounted to $552 thousand and $577 thousand at March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013,
respectively, and primarily represented the guaranteed portions of non-performing SBA loans.
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The following table sets forth information regarding non-performing assets, TDR loans and delinquent loans 60-89

days past due as to interest or principal, held by the Company at the dates indicated:

(Dollars in thousands)

Commercial real estate

Commercial and industrial

Commercial construction

Residential

Home equity

Consumer

Total non-accrual loans

Overdrafts > 90 days past due

Total non-performing loans

Other real estate owned (“OREQO”)
Total non-performing assets

Total Loans

Accruing TDR loans not included above
Delinquent loans 60-89 day past due
Non-performing loans to total loans
Non-performing assets to total assets
Loans 60-89 days past due to total loans
Adversely classified loans to total loans
Allowance for loan losses

Allowance for loan losses: Non-performing loans

Allowance for loan losses: Total loans

March 31,
2014
$8,880
5,598
1,038
1,236
273

9

17,034
4

17,038
114
$17,152
$1,547,569
$11,030
$363
1.10
0.92
0.02
1.70
$26,172
153.61
1.69

%
%
%
%

%
%

December 31,
2013
$10,561
5,743
1,118
633

281

7
18,343
3
18,346
114
$18,460
$1,524,056
$11,438
$2,638
1.20
1.00
0.17
1.83
$26,967
146.99
1.77

%
%
%
%

%
%

March 31,

2013

$12,001

5,732

705

1,011

413

19,862

2

19,864

167

$20,031
$1,404,160
$14,940

$986

1.41 %
1.18 %
0.07 %
2.25 %
$25,016

125.94 %
1.78 %

Total impaired loans amounted to $27.9 million and $29.8 million at March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013,
respectively. Total accruing impaired loans amounted to $11.5 million and $11.9 million at March 31, 2014 and
December 31, 2013, respectively, while non-accrual impaired loans amounted to $16.4 million and $17.9 million as of
March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively. The decrease in impaired loans since the prior period was due
to a variety of activity including: the foreclosure sale of underlying collateral on a larger commercial real estate
relationship; charge-offs, primarily commercial real estate and C&I loans; and payoffs; partially offset by additional

credit impairments during the period.

In management’s opinion, the majority of impaired loan balances at March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 were
supported by expected future cash flows or, for those collateral dependent loans, the net realizable value of the
underlying collateral. Based on management’s assessment at March 31, 2014, impaired loans totaling $19.4 million
required no specific reserves and impaired loans totaling $8.5 million required specific reserve allocations of $3.3
million. At December 31, 2013, impaired loans totaling $18.8 million required no specific reserves and impaired
loans totaling $11.0 million required specific reserve allocations of $4.4 million. Management closely monitors these

relationships for collateral or credit deterioration.

Total TDR loans, included in the impaired loan figures above as of March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 were
$19.4 million and $20.9 million, respectively. TDR loans on accrual status amounted to $11.0 million and $11.4
million at March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively. TDR loans included in non-performing loans
amounted to $8.4 million and $9.5 million at March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively. The Company
continues to work with commercial relationships and enters into loan modifications to the extent deemed to be

70



Edgar Filing: Evergreen Global Dividend Opportunity Fund - Form N-CSRS

necessary or appropriate while attempting to achieve the best mutual outcome given the current economic
environment.

The carrying value of OREO at March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 was $114 thousand and consisted of one
property. There were no additions, sales or impairment writedowns on OREO during the current period. During the
three months ended March 31, 2013, one property was sold; there were gains of $101 thousand realized on this OREO
sale.
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Management believes that the loan portfolio has experienced a level of modest credit stabilization compared to the
2013 periods, as indicated by the improving statistics related to migration of adversely classified, non-accrual and
impaired loans and the level of OREO properties held as of March 31, 2014. Given the size and commercial mix of
the Company's loan portfolio, management considers the current statistics to be reflective of the lagging effect that the
regional economic environment has had on the local commercial markets and its impact on the credit profile of such a
portfolio.

Allowance for Loan Losses

On a quarterly basis, management prepares an estimate of the allowance necessary to cover estimated credit losses.
The allowance for loan losses is an estimate of probable credit risk inherent in the loan portfolio as of the specified
balance sheet dates. The Company maintains the allowance at a level that it deems adequate to absorb all reasonably
anticipated losses from specifically known and other credit risks associated with the portfolio.

In making its assessment on the adequacy of the allowance, management considers several quantitative and qualitative
factors that could have an effect on the credit quality of the portfolio including individual assessment of larger and
high risk credits, delinquency trends and the level of non-performing loans, net charge-offs, the growth and
composition of the loan portfolio, expansion in geographic market area, the experience level of lenders and changes in
underwriting criteria, and the strength of the local and national economy, among other factors. Except for loans
specifically identified as impaired, as discussed above, the estimate is a two-tiered approach that allocates loan loss
reserves to “adversely classified” loans by credit rating and to non-classified loans by credit type. The general loss
allocations take into account the quantitative historic loss experience as well as the qualitative factors identified
above. The allowance for loan losses is established through a provision for loan losses, which is a direct charge to
earnings. Loan losses are charged against the allowance when management believes that the collectability of the loan
principal is unlikely. Recoveries on loans previously charged off are credited to the allowance.

Management closely monitors the credit quality of individual delinquent and non-performing relationships, industry
concentrations, the local and regional real estate market and current economic conditions. The level of delinquent and
non-performing assets is largely a function of economic conditions and the overall banking environment. Despite
prudent loan underwriting, adverse changes within the Company’s market area, or deterioration in the local, regional or
national economic conditions could negatively impact the Company’s level of non-performing assets in the future.

For the three months ended March 31, 2014, the Company recorded net charge-offs of $995 thousand compared to
$21 thousand for the three months ended March 31, 2013. The majority of the current charge-offs were previously
allocated specific reserves on four commercial relationships for which management deemed collectability of amounts
due was unlikely based on current realizable collateral values. This reduction in specific reserves contributed to the
decline in the overall allowance to total loan ratio at March 31, 2014. Management continues to closely monitor the
non-performing assets, charge-offs and necessary allowance levels, including specific reserves. The allowance for
loan losses to total loans ratio was 1.69% at March 31, 2014 and 1.77% at December 31, 2013.

Based on management’s judgment as to the existing credit risks inherent in the loan portfolio, as discussed above under
the headings "Credit Risk" and "Asset Quality," management believes that the Company’s allowance for loan losses is
deemed adequate to absorb probable losses from specifically known and other credit risks associated with the

portfolio as of March 31, 2014.
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The following table summarizes the activity in the allowance for loan losses for the periods indicated:

(Dollars in thousands)

Balance at beginning of year

Provision charged to operations
Recoveries on charged-off loans:

Commercial real estate
Commercial and industrial
Commercial construction
Residential

Home equity

Consumer

Total recoveries
Charged-off loans
Commercial real estate
Commercial and industrial
Commercial construction
Residential

Home equity

Consumer

Total Charged off

Net loans charged-off
Ending Balance

Annualized net loans charged-off: Average loans outstanding

The allowance reflects management’s estimate of loan loss reserves necessary to support the level of credit risk

Three months ended March 31,

2014 2013
$26,967 $24,254
200 783

26 10

— 128

— 21

12 3

38 162

203 —

812 132

— 44

18 7

1,033 183
(995 ) @l
$26,172 $25,016
0.26 % 0.01

)

%

inherent in the portfolio during the period. Refer to “Credit Risk," "Asset Quality” and “Allowance for Loan Losses”

contained in Item 7, "Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations,"
included in the Company’s 2013 Annual Report on Form 10-K for additional information regarding the Company’s
credit risk management process and allowance for loan losses.
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The following table sets forth the deposit balances by certain categories at the dates indicated and the percentage of
each category to total deposits.

March 31, 2014 December 31, 2013 March 31, 2013

(Dollars in thousands) Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent

i‘;‘:;ﬁtsere“ bearing demand ¢ >3 467 252 % $435465  26.6 % $382,000  25.7 %
Interest bearing checking 226,427 13.5 % 222,837 13.6 % 212,451 14.3 %
Total checking 649,889 38.7 % 658,302 40.2 % 594,451 40.0 %
Savings 153,212 9.1 % 150,215 9.2 % 162,816 11.0 %
Money markets 592,406 35.3 % 575,825 35.2 % 500,936 33.7 %
Total savings/money markets 745,618 44.4 % 726,040 44.4 % 663,752 447 %
Certificates of deposit 197,956 11.8 % 200,083 12.2 % 223,433 15.1 %
Total non-brokered deposits $1,593,463 949 % $1,584,425 96.8 % $1,481,636 99.8 %
Brokered deposits 85,103 5.1 % 51,567 3.2 % 3,032 0.2 %
Total deposits $1,678,566 100.0 % $1,635,992 100.0 % $1,484,668 100.0 %

As of March 31, 2014, deposits, excluding brokered deposits, increased $9.0 million, or 1%, since December 31,
2013, and $111.8 million, or 8%, since March 31, 2013. Non-brokered deposit growth since December 31, 2013 was
noted primarily within the money market category, partially offset by a decrease in checking account balances.

From time to time, management utilizes brokered deposits as cost effective wholesale funding sources to support
continued loan growth and as part of the Company's asset-liability management strategy to protect against rising rates.
Brokered deposits may be comprised of overnight money market deposits and selected term CDs gathered from
nationwide bank networks in increments that are covered by FDIC insurance, or term deposits brokered from large
money center banks. Brokered deposits were comprised of brokered CDs at March 31, 2014, December 31, 2013, and
March 31, 2013. Brokered CD's increased $33.5 million, or 65%, during the first quarter of 2014. Brokered CDs
outstanding at March 31, 2014 had a weighted average life of approximately 3.8 years.

Borrowed Funds
Borrowed funds consisted of FHLB borrowings of $7.5 million at March 31, 2014, compared to $36.5 million at
December 31, 2013 and $44.4 million March 31, 2013, respectively. As noted above, borrowed fund balances have

declined since year end as the Company has utilized brokered CDs as an alternative strategic funding source.

At March 31, 2014, the Bank had the capacity to borrow additional funds from the FHLB of up to approximately
$330.0 million and capacity to borrow from the FRB Discount window of approximately $70.0 million.

The Company also had $10.8 million of outstanding junior subordinated debentures at March 31, 2014, December 31,
2013 and March 31, 2013, respectively, in addition to the borrowed funds noted above.
Liquidity
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Liquidity is the ability to meet cash needs arising from, among other things, fluctuations in loans, investments,
deposits and borrowings. Liquidity management is the coordination of activities so that cash needs are anticipated and
met readily and efficiently. The Company’s liquidity policies are set and monitored by the Company’s Asset-Liability
Committee of the Board of Directors. The Company’s asset-liability objectives are to engage in sound balance sheet
management strategies, maintain liquidity, provide and enhance access to a diverse and stable source of funds, provide
competitively priced and attractive
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products to customers and conduct funding at a low cost relative to current market conditions. Funds gathered are
used to support current commitments, to fund earning asset growth, and to take advantage of selected leverage
opportunities.

The Company’s liquidity is maintained by projecting cash needs, balancing maturing assets with maturing liabilities,
monitoring various liquidity ratios, monitoring deposit flows, maintaining cash flow within the investment portfolio,
and maintaining wholesale funding resources.

At March 31, 2014, the Company’s wholesale funding sources included borrowing capacity at the FHLB and brokered
deposits. In addition, the Company maintains fed fund purchase arrangements with correspondent banks and access to
the FRB Discount Window.

Management believes that the Company has adequate liquidity to meet its obligations. However, if, as a result of
general economic conditions, or other events, these sources of external funding become restricted or are eliminated,
the Company may not be able to raise adequate funds or may incur substantially higher funding costs or operating
restrictions in order to raise the necessary funds to support the Company's operations and growth.

The Company has in the past also offered shares of the Company’s common stock for sale to the general public in
order to increase its liquidity.

Capital Resources

The Company believes its current capital is adequate to support ongoing operations. As of March 31, 2014, both the
Company and the Bank qualify as “well capitalized” under applicable regulations of the Federal Reserve Board and the
FDIC.

The current regulatory requirements and the Company’s actual capital amounts and ratios are presented as of
March 31, 2014 in the table below. The Bank’s capital amounts and ratios do not differ materially from the amounts
and ratios presented for the Company.

Minimum Capital Minimum Capital
Actual for Capital Adequacy To Be
Purposes Well Capitalized
(Dollars in thousands) Amount  Ratio Amount  Ratio Amount  Ratio
Total Capital (to risk weighted assets) $178,260 1139 % $125,174 800 % $156,467 10.00 %

Tier 1 Capital (to risk weighted assets) $157,138 10.04 % $62587 400 % $93,880 6.00 %

Tier 1 Capital (to average assets) or $157,138 858 % $73250 4.00 % $91.563 5.00 %*
Leverage ratio

* This requirement is reflected in the table merely for informational purposes with respect to the Bank, and does not
apply to the Company.

In July 2013, the Federal Reserve, the FDIC, and OCC, adopted a final rule that implements the Basel III changes to
the international regulatory capital framework and revises the U.S. risk-based and leverage capital requirements for
U.S. banking organizations to strengthen identified areas of weakness in the capital rules and to address relevant
provisions of the Dodd-Frank Act.

The final rule establishes a stricter regulatory capital framework that requires banking organizations to hold more and

higher-quality capital to act as a financial cushion to absorb losses and help banking organizations better withstand
periods of financial stress. The final rule emphasizes common equity tier 1 (“CET1”) capital and implements strict
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eligibility criteria for regulatory capital instruments while also modifying the methodology for calculating
risk-weighted assets to enhance risk sensitivity. The final rule also increases capital ratios for all banking
organizations and introduces a “capital conservation buffer” which is in addition to each capital ratio. If a banking
organization dips into its capital conservation buffer it may be restricted in its ability to pay dividends and
discretionary bonus payments to its executive officers. Although community banks must generally begin complying
with the final rules on January 1, 2015, with a phase in period that extends to January 2019, management currently
believes the Company would satisfy the higher capital ratios imposed by Basel III.
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The above Basel III capital ratio requirements as applicable to the Bank after the full phase-in period are summarized
in the table below.(1)

Basel III Basel 111
Basel III Minimum Additional "Adequate" Ratio
for Capital Capital with Capital
Adequacy Purposes Conservation Conservation
Buffer Buffer
;Fsc;teatlS;{lsk Based Capital (total capital to risk weighted 3.0% 259 10.5%
Tier 1 Risk Based Capital (tier 1 to risk weighted assets) 6.0% 2.5% 8.5%
Tier 1 Leverage Ratio (tier 1 to average assets) 4.0% —% 4.0%
Common Equity Tier 1 Risk Based (CET]1 to risk 45% 259 70%

weighted assets)

(1) Because the Basel III final rules modify the methodology for calculating risk-weighted assets and the deduction
and adjustment to capital, the ratios above may not be comparable to the current applicable regulatory requirements,
or the Company's actual capital ratios as of March 31, 2014.

Although the Company believes its current capital is adequate to support ongoing operations, on July 18, 2013, the
Company filed a shelf registration of common stock, rights or preferred stock with the SEC for the flexibility to raise,
over a three year period, up to $40 million in capital to position the Company to take advantage of future growth and
market share opportunities.

The Company maintains a dividend reinvestment plan (the "DRP"). The DRP enables stockholders, at their
discretion, to elect to reinvest cash dividends paid on their shares of the Company’s common stock by purchasing
additional shares of common stock from the Company at a purchase price equal to fair market value. Shareholders
utilized the DRP to invest $302 thousand of the $1.2 million in cash dividends paid through March 31, 2014, into
16,172 shares of the Company’s common stock.

As previously announced on April 15, 2014, the Company declared a quarterly dividend of $0.12 per share to be paid
on June 2, 2014 to shareholders of record as of May 12, 2014. The quarterly dividend represents a 4.3% increase over
the 2013 dividend rate.

Investment Assets Under Management
The Company provides a wide range of investment advisory and wealth management services, including brokerage,
trust, and investment management (together, “investment advisory services”). The market values of the related assets

managed are affected by fluctuations in the financial markets.

Also included in the investment assets under management total are customers’ commercial sweep arrangements that
are invested in third party money market mutual funds.

The following table sets forth the fair market value of investment assets under management by certain categories at
the dates indicated.

. March 31, December 31, March 31,
(Dollars in thousands) 2014 2013 2013
Investment advisory and management services $538,391 $537,545 $496,659
Brokerage and management services 133,557 127,472 115,000
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Total investment advisory assets 671,948 665,017 611,659
Commercial sweep accounts 3,310 2,313 3,289
Investment assets under management $675,258 $667,330 $614,948

Investment assets under management increased $7.9 million, or 1%, since December 31, 2013 and $60.3 million, or
10%, since March 31, 2013.

Total assets under management, which includes total assets, investment assets under management, and loans serviced
for others amounted to $2.61 billion at March 31, 2014, $2.59 billion at December 31, 2013, and $2.39 billion at
March 31, 2013. Investment assets under management and loans serviced for others are not carried as assets on the
Company's balance sheet.
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Results of Operations
Three Months Ended March 31, 2014 vs. Three Months Ended March 31, 2013

Unless otherwise indicated, the reported results are for the three months ended March 31, 2014 with the “comparable
period,” “prior year” and “prior period” being the three months ended March 31, 2013. Average yields are presented on a
tax equivalent basis.

The Company’s year-to-date 2014 net income amounted to $3.5 million compared to $3.4 million for the same period
in 2013, an increase of $73 thousand, or 2%. Diluted earnings per share were $0.35 for both the three-month periods
ended March 31, 2014 and March 31, 2013.

The Company's growth contributed to increases in net interest income and non-interest expenses in the first quarter of
2014 compared to the same period in the prior year. Net interest income was also impacted by a lower loan loss
provision in the current year-to-date period, partially offset by a decrease in non-interest income due primarily to
lower gains on loan sales in the first quarter of 2014.

Net Interest Income

The Company’s net interest income for the three months ended March 31, 2014 was $16.9 million compared to $15.8
million for the three months ended March 31, 2013, an increase of $1.1 million, or 7%. The increase in net interest
income over the comparable year period was primarily due to revenue generated from loan growth, partially offset by
a decrease in tax equivalent net interest margin.

Net Interest Margin

The Company’s margin was 4.02% for the three months ended March 31, 2014, compared to 4.16% in the comparable

2013 period and was relatively consistent with the quarterly margins at December 31, 2013 of 4.04% and
September 30, 2013 of 4.02%.
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The following table sets forth the extent to which changes in interest rates and changes in the average balances of
interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities have affected interest income and expense during the three
months ended March 31, 2014 compared to the three months ended March 31, 2013. For each category of
interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities, information is provided on changes attributable to: (1) volume
(change in average portfolio balance multiplied by prior period average rate); (2) interest rate (change in average
interest rate multiplied by prior period average balance); and (3) rate and volume (the remaining difference).

Increase (decrease) due to

(Dollars in thousands) gﬁgnge Volume Rate i{%tli/me
Interest Income

Loans and loans held for sale $803 $1,891 $(923 ) $(165 )
Investment Securities 212 196 103 (87 )
Other Interest Earning Assets (1) 23 3 ) 36 (10 )
Total interest earnings assets 1,038 2,084 (784 ) (262 )
Interest Expense

Interest checking, savings and money market (57 ) 77 (125 ) 9 )
Certificates of deposit (133 ) (48 ) (95 ) 10

Brokered CDs 157 162 — 5 )
Borrowed funds (24 ) (16 ) (11 ) 3

Junior subordinated debentures — — — —

Total interest-bearing deposits, borrowed funds and

debentures (57 ) 175 (231 ) d )
Change in net interest income $1,095 $1,909 $(553 ) $(261 )

(1)Other interest earning assets includes dividends on FHLB stock and income on short-term investments.
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The following table presents the Company’s average balance sheet, net interest income and average rates for the three

months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013.

AVERAGE BALANCES, INTEREST AND AVERAGE YIELDS

Three months ended March 31, 2014

. Average
(Dollars in thousands) Balance
Assets:
%zc;ans and loans held for sale $1.534.939
Investments (3) 211,718
Other Interest Earning
Assets(4) 12,382
Total interest earnings assets 1,759,539
Other assets 86,025
Total assets $1,845,564
Liabilities and stockholders’
equity:
Int chkg, savings and money $954.411
market
Certificates of deposit 200,366
Brokered CDs 67,596
Borrowed funds 30,669

Junior subordinated debentures 10,825
Total interest-bearing funding 1,263,867

Net interest rate spread
Demand deposits 416,465
Total deposits, borrowed funds

and debentures 1,680,332
Other liabilities 11,938
Total liabilities 1,692,270
Stockholders’ equity 153,294
Total liabilities and $1.845.564

stockholders’ equity
Net interest income
Net interest margin (tax
equivalent)

Interest

$17,176
1,022
33
18,231

542

294
165
22
294
1,317

1,317

$16,914

Average
Yield(1)

4.59
2.60
1.05
4.33

0.23

0.60
0.99
0.30
10.88
0.42

391

0.32

4.02

%
%
%
%

%

%
%
%
%
%

%

%

%

Three months ended March 31, 2013

Average Interest Average
Balance Yield(1)
$1,382,138 $16,373 4.85 %
178,641 810 2.37 %
17,759 10 0.23 %
1,578,538 17,193 4.52 %
86,836
$1,665,374
$846,730 599 0.29 %
225,766 427 0.77 %
3,032 8 1.02 %
47,557 46 0.39 %
10,825 294 10.88 %
1,133,910 1,374 0.49 %

4.03 %
378,192 —
1,512,102 1,374 0.37 %
12,275
1,524,377
140,997
$1,665,374

$15,819
4.16 %

Average yields are presented on a tax equivalent basis. The tax equivalent effect associated with loans and
(1)investments, which was not included in the interest amount above, was $569 thousand and $417 thousand for the

periods ended March 31, 2014 and March 31, 2013 respectively.
(2) Average loans and loans held for sale include non-accrual loans and are net of average deferred loan fees.

(3) Average investment balances are presented at average amortized cost.

(4) Average other interest earning assets includes interest-earning deposits, fed funds sold, and FHLB stock.
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Interest and Dividend Income

Total interest and dividend income amounted to $18.2 million for the three months ended March 31, 2014, an increase
of $1.0 million, or 6%, compared to the prior period. The increase resulted primarily from an increase of $181.0
million, or 11%, in the average balance of interest earning assets, partially offset by a 19 basis point decline in the
yield on interest earning assets primarily due to a decline in loan yields.

Interest income on loans and loans held for sale, which accounts for the majority of interest income, amounted to
$17.2 million, an increase of $803 thousand, or 5%, over the comparable period, due primarily to loan growth,
partially offset by a decline in loan yields. The average loans and loans held for sale balances increased $152.8
million, or 11%, compared to the prior period. The average yield on loans and loans held for sale amounted to 4.59%
for the three months ended March 31, 2014, a declined 26 basis points since the same period in 2013, due primarily to
the current interest rate environment and commercial loan repricing.

Income on investment securities amounted to $1.0 million, an increase of $212 thousand, or 26%, compared to the
same period in 2013. This increase resulted from both an increase in the average balance of investment securities of
$33.1 million, or 19%, and an increase in investment yields of 23 basis points, due primarily to a shift in the
composition of the portfolio in mid-2013 from shorter duration agencies to longer duration mortgage backed securities
as part of the Bank's asset-liability management strategy.

Income on other interest earning assets has increased $23 thousand compared to the same three month period in 2013
primarily resulting from an increase in the dividend rate on FHLB stock.

Interest Expense

For the three months ended March 31, 2014, total interest expense amounted to $1.3 million, a decrease of $57
thousand, or 4%, compared to the prior period. The decrease resulted primarily from a decline of 5 basis points in the
average cost of funding due to the reduction in deposit market interest rates over the period, partially offset by an
increase in the average balances of wholesale funding.

Interest expense on interest checking, savings and money market accounts amounted to $542 thousand for the three
months ended March 31, 2014, a decrease of $57 thousand, or 10%, over the same period in the prior year, resulting
primarily from a decline in the average cost of these accounts, partially offset by an increased in average balances.
The average cost of these accounts declined 6 basis points to 0.23%, while the average balances increased $107.7
million, or 13%, compared to the prior period.

Interest expense on CDs amounted to $294 thousand, a decrease of $133 thousand, or 31%, over the comparable
period. The decrease was primarily due to a decline in rates over the comparable period and to a lesser extent,
decreased average balances. The average cost of CDs decreased 17 basis points to 0.60% for the three months ended
March 31, 2014 while the average balances decreased $25.4 million, or 11%, compared to the same prior period in
2013.

Interest expense on brokered CDs amounted to $165 thousand, an increase of $157 thousand over the comparable
period, primarily due to increased average balances. The average balances increased by $64.6 million compared to the
2013 period and the average cost of brokered CDs amounted to 0.99% for the three months ended March 31, 2014, a
slight decrease since the prior year.
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Interest expense on borrowed funds, consisting primarily of FHLB borrowings, amounted to $22 thousand, a decrease
of $24 thousand compared to the same period last year. The decrease was attributed to both the decrease in average
balances of approximately $16.9 million and a decline of 9 basis points in the average costs of these borrowings.

The interest expense and average rate on junior subordinated debentures remained the same at $294 thousand and
10.88% for both the three months ended March 31, 2014 and March 31, 2013.

For the three months ended March 31, 2014, the average balance of non-interest bearing demand deposits increased
$38.3 million, or 10%, as compared to the same period in 2013. Non-interest bearing demand deposits are an
important component of the Company’s core funding strategy. This non-interest bearing funding represented 25% and
26% of total average deposit balances for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.
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Provision for Loan Loss

The provision for loan losses amounted to $200 thousand for the three months ended March 31, 2014, a decrease of

$583 thousand compared to the same period last year. In determining the provision to the allowance for loan losses,
management takes into consideration the level of loan growth and an estimate of credit risk, which includes such items

as adversely classified and non-performing loans, the estimated specific reserves needed for impaired loans, the level

of net charge-offs, and the estimated impact of current economic conditions on credit quality. For further discussion
regarding the provision for loan losses and management’s assessment of the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses

see "Credit Risk," "Asset Quality” and “Allowance for Loan Losses” under "Financial Condition" in this Item 2 above
and "Credit Risk," “Asset Quality” and “Allowance for Loan Losses” in the Financial Condition section of Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations in the Company’s 2013 Annual Report on
Form 10-K.

There have been no material changes to the Company’s underwriting practices or to the allowance for loan loss
methodology used to estimate loan loss exposure as reported in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2013. The provision for loan losses is a significant factor in the Company’s operating
results.

Non-Interest Income
Non-interest income for the three months ended March 31, 2014 amounted to $3.5 million, a decrease of $160
thousand, or 4%, as compared to the three months ended March 31, 2013. The significant changes are discussed

below.

Investment advisory income increased $88 thousand, or 9%, compared to the same period in the prior year, primarily
due to net asset growth from changes in market values due to fluctuations in the investment markets.

Deposit and interchange fees increased $90 thousand, or 8%, mainly as a result of increases in overdraft fees and
tnterchange fees over the prior period. Deposit and interchange fees primarily includes fees received on customer

deposit accounts, ATM interchange income, partially offset by the cost of the Bank's deposit rewards program.

Gains on sales of loans decreased $262 thousand, or 78%, due to a lower volume of mortgage origination activity in
the first quarter of 2014 as a result of an increase in residential mortgage rates.

Other income decreased $76 thousand, or 13%, due primarily to a lower level of gains on OREO sales in the current
year-to-date period.
Non-Interest Expense

Non-interest expense for the three months ended March 31, 2014 amounted to $14.8 million, an increase of $1.4
million, or 10%, compared to the same period in 2013. The significant changes are discussed below.

Salaries and employee benefits increased by $1.0 million, or 13%. The increase was primarily due to the personnel

and benefit costs necessary to support the Company’s strategic growth and market expansion initiatives since the prior
period.
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Occupancy and equipment expenses increased $125 thousand, or 8%, primarily due to branch expansion and
investments in maintaining our facilities.

Technology and telecommunications expense increased $109 thousand, or 9%, primarily as a result of investments to
support our strategic growth and network infrastructure, improve our service capabilities and enhance business

continuity.

pther non-interest expense increased $155 thousand, or 15%, due to increased general and administrative costs,
including deposit product costs and security expenses, and business development costs.
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Item 3 - Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

The Company’s primary market risk is interest rate risk. Oversight of interest rate risk management is centered on the
Asset-Liability Committee ("ALCO"). Annually, ALCO reviews and approves the Company’s asset-liability
management policy, which provides management with guidelines for controlling interest rate risk, as measured
through net interest income sensitivity to changes in interest rates, within certain tolerance levels. ALCO also
establishes and monitors guidelines for the Company’s liquidity and capital ratios.

The Company’s asset-liability management strategies and guidelines are reviewed on a periodic basis by management
and presented and discussed with ALCO on at least a quarterly basis. These strategies and guidelines are revised
based on changes in interest rate levels, general economic conditions, competition in the marketplace, the current
interest rate risk position of the Company, anticipated growth and other factors.

One of the principal factors in maintaining planned levels of net interest income is the ability to design effective
strategies to manage the impact of interest rate changes on future net interest income. Quarterly, management
completes a net interest income sensitivity analysis, which is presented to the committee. This analysis includes a
simulation of the Company’s net interest income under various interest rate scenarios. Variations in the interest rate
environment affect numerous factors, including prepayment speeds, reinvestment rates, maturities of investments (due
to call provisions), and interest rates on various asset and liability accounts.

The Company can be subject to margin compression depending on the economic environment and the shape of the
yield curve. Under the Company’s current balance sheet position, the Company’s margin generally performs slightly
better over time in a rising rate environment, while it generally decreases in a declining rate environment and when
the yield curve is flattening or inverted.

Under a flattening yield curve scenario, margin compression occurs as the spread between the cost of funding and the
yield on interest earning assets narrows. Under this scenario the degree of margin compression is highly dependent on
the Company’s ability to fund asset growth through lower cost deposits. However, if the curve is flattening, while
short-term rates are rising, the adverse impact on margin may be somewhat delayed, as increases in the Prime Rate
will initially result in the Company’s asset yields re-pricing more quickly than funding costs.

Under an inverted yield curve situation, shorter-term rates exceed longer-term rates, and the impact on margin is
similar but more adverse than the flat curve scenario. Again, however, the extent of the impact on margin is highly
dependent on the Company’s balance sheet mix.

In a declining rate environment, margin compression will eventually occur as the yield on interest earning assets
decreases more rapidly than decreases in funding costs. The primary causes would be the impact of interest rate
decreases (including decreases in the Prime Rate) on adjustable rate loans and the fact that decreases in deposit rates
may be limited or lag decreases in the Prime Rate.

Net interest margin has remained relatively flat over the last few quarters following a decrease in early 2013.
Additional margin compression may occur if loans re-price downward while the cost of deposits remains at the same
level.

There have been no material changes in the results of the Company’s net interest income sensitivity analysis as
reported in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2013. At March 31, 2014,
management continues to consider the Company’s primary interest rate risk exposure to be margin compression that
may result from changes in interest rates and/or changes in the mix of the Company’s balance sheet components. This
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would include the mix of fixed versus variable rate loans and investments on the asset side, and higher cost versus
lower cost deposits and overnight borrowings versus term borrowings and certificates of deposit on the liability side.
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Item 4 - Controls and Procedures
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company maintains a set of disclosure controls and procedures and internal controls designed to ensure that the
information required to be disclosed in reports that it files or submits to the United States Securities and Exchange
Commission (the “SEC”) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), is recorded,
processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms.

The Company carried out an evaluation as of the end of the period covered by this report under the supervision and
with the participation of the Company’s management, including its principal executive officer and principal financial
officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures pursuant
to Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(b). Based upon that evaluation, the Company’s principal executive officer and principal
financial officer concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures are effective as of March 31, 2014.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting
There has been no change in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting that has occurred during the

Company’s most recent fiscal quarter (i.e., the three months ended March 31, 2014) that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, such internal controls.
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PART II - OTHER INFORMATION
Item 1 - Legal Proceedings
There are no material pending legal proceedings to which the Company or its subsidiaries are a party or to which any
of its property is subject, other than ordinary routine litigation incidental to the business of the Company. After review
with legal counsel, management does not believe resolution of any present litigation will have a material adverse
effect on the consolidated financial condition or results of operations of the Company.

Item 1A - Risk Factors

Management believes that there have been no material changes in the Company’s risk factors as reported in the Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2013.

Item 2 - Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds

The Company has not sold any equity securities that were not registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended,
during the three months ended March 31, 2014. Neither the Company nor any “affiliated purchaser” (as defined in the
SEC’s Rule 10b-18(a)(3)) has repurchased any of the Company’s outstanding shares, nor caused any such shares to be
repurchased on its behalf, during the three months ended March 31, 2014.

Item 3 - Defaults upon Senior Securities

Not Applicable

Item 4 - Mine Safety Disclosures

Not Applicable

Item 5 - Other Information

Not Applicable
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Item 6 - Exhibits
EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit No. Description

3 1Amended and Restated Articles of Organization of the Company, incorporated by reference to the Company’s
" Form 8-K filed June 10 2013.

2Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Company, as amended as of January 15, 2013, incorporated by reference to
““Exhibit 3.2 to the Company’s Form 8-K filed on January 22, 2013.

Renewal Rights Agreement dated as of December 11, 2007 by and between the Company and Computershare
Trust Company, N.A., as Rights Agent, including Terms of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock,

4.1 Summary of Rights to Purchase Shares of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock, and Form of Rights
Certificate attached as Exhibits A, B and C thereto, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.5 to the Company’s
Form 8-K filed on December 13, 2007.

31.1*Certification of Principal Executive Officer under Securities Exchange Act Rule 13a-14(a)
31.2*Certification of Principal Financial Officer under Securities Exchange Act Rule 13a-14(a)

.. Certification of Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer under 18 U.S.C. § 1350 Furnished
Pursuant to Securities Exchange Act Rule 13a-14(b)

The following materials from Enterprise Bancorp, Inc.’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
March 31, 2014 were formatted in XBRL (eXtensible Business Reporting Language): (i) Consolidated Balance
Sheets as of March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, (ii) Consolidated Statements of Income for the three

101*months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013, (iii) Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for the three
months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013, (iv) Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity for the three months
ended March 31, 2014, (v) Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the three months ended March 31, 2014
and 2013 and (vi) Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements.

*Filed herewith
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

ENTERPRISE BANCORP, INC.

DATE: May 9, 2014 By: /s/James A. Marcotte
James A. Marcotte
Executive Vice President,
Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer
(Principal Financial Officer)
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